
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

AGENDA 
FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 
Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 
December 7th 2011 

2:00 p.m. 
 

 
  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
   2-REPORTS 

Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 
 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB N  Minutes of November 2nd, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors   
TAB O  Minutes of November 16th, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB P  Resolution Recognizing Gregory Edward Kenneth Palmer as an Eagle Scout – Darren Coffey, Interim  

County Administrator 
TAB Q  FY12 Budget Supplement for Fork Union Sanitary District Insurance Claim – Renee Hoover, Finance  

Director 
TAB R  FY12 Budget Supplement for Sheriff's Department Insurance Claim – Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
TAB S  FY12 Budget Supplement for Review of Telecommunication Tower Application – Darren Coffey,  

Planning Director 
TAB T  Budget Transfer for County Attorney Services – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB U  Resolution to Adopt a Road Name: Palmer Farm Lane – Amy Helfrich, Building Inspections Permit  

Clerk 
 
    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
TAB V  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
 
   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 
     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 
TAB W  LMOA Property Exchange – Fred Payne, County Attorney 
TAB X  Tyler Munis Financial Software Project Update – Jonathan McMahon, Director of Information  

Technology 
 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 
TAB YZ  EST 11:02 – Palmyra Associates – Steve Tugwell, Planner 
TAB A  EST 11:03 – Maben – Andrew Pompei, Planner 
TAB B Hiring of additional staff for rescue coverage – Len Bozza, President of the Lake Monticello  

Rescue Squad 
TAB C  Budget Appropriation to Carry-Over the School FY 11 Local Appropriation– Renee Hoover, Finance  

Director 
TAB D  Reimbursement for SPCA Maintenance – Garland Nuckols, Facilities Director 
  Boards, Commissions and Committees – Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB E   Board of Zoning Appeals (two positions open) 
TAB F   Economic Development Authority 
TAB G   Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Committee 
TAB H   Jefferson Area Board for Aging Advisory Council 
TAB I   Thomas Jefferson Emergency Medical Services Council 
TAB J   Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

    
  9-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
10-NEW BUSINESS 

 
11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 
 12-CLOSED MEETING 

Legal Matter - Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members regarding specific  
legal matters requiring provision of the legal advice by such counsel. 

TAB K  Acquisition of Real Property - Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for  
a public purpose. 

 
13-ADJOURN 
  
 
 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  
of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  
one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 
 

********** 
ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 
 
2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 
bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 
3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 
 
4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  
       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 



















Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 1 
 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

November 02, 2011 
2:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  
    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 
Joe Chesser 

    Chris Fairchild 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
    Fred Payne, County Attorney 
    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
    Dwight Godwin, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Darren Coffey, Planning Director 
    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of November 2nd, 2011, to order at 2:00 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited; after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 
 
REPORTS 
Mr. Christopher Byington, VDOT representative, provided the Board with an update regarding 
the following topics: 
 Changes in the Manual Uniform Traffic Devices. 
 Resurfacing schedule. 
 Completed Route 709 and 675 Rural Rustic Projects. 
 Traffic study under review along Route 15 between Troy and Route 618. 
 Speed study for Route 53, tentatively scheduled for the August – September 2012 time 

frame. 
Mr. Mark Wood, Area Land Use Engineer, provided the Board with an update regarding the 
following topics: 
 Route 53 progress near the new high school. 
 Speed study complete for Route 721, Pleasant Grove Sports Park Drive, and awaiting 

approval. 
 Grace and Glory Church on Route 53, Fluvanna Auto on Route 250, and Sycamore 

Square Phase IV all under construction. 
Mr. Fairchild questioned the wavy road in front of the new high school.  Mr. Wood stated that it 
does meet minimum required standards.  Mr. Kenney asked about the directional sign between 
Kents Store Way and Venable Road; four months is unacceptable to get a sign replaced. 
 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 2 
 

 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, introduced the new Human Resources Director, Ms. 
Brandy Amos. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 
Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 
 Jim Toms, Business Owner on Route 15 – addressed the Board in regards to the Sign 

Ordinance. 
 Elizabeth Franklin, Kents Store – addressed the Board in support of Mr. Jim Toms’ sign 

request. 
 Robin Bryant, Palmyra District – addressed the Board regarding which county responds 

to her house for emergency help. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items were pulled from the consent agenda: 
 Minutes of October 19th, 2011. 

 
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 
 Minutes of October 5th, 2011. 

Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 

 
Minutes of October 19, 2011 
The minutes were deferred for clarification of motion made in reference to the Economic 
Development Director Position. 
 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
Renee Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding accounts payable. 
After some discussion, the following motion was made: 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved that the Accounts Payable from September 27th, 2011, 
through October 25th, 2011, and payroll for the month of September, 2011, in the 
amount of $1,896,355.07, be ratified.  Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried 
with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Fairchild, Chesser and 
Kenney. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 
 

General                 $ 855,935.04 
Community Programs            5,268.79 
Federal Grants           16,040.00 
Capital Improvements        135,104.70 
Debt Service                    100,764.86 
Sewer              3,662.08 
Fork Union Sanitary District           8,857.44 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 3 
 

 

Total Expenditures by Fund             $1,125,632.91 
Payroll  - September                                  770,722.16 
Total Payables & Payroll            $ 1,896,355.07 

 
Mr. Weaver requested an accounting of the health insurance fund. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
None 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
Urban Development Area Presentation – Mr. Darren Coffey, Planning Director, introduced Mr. 
Todd Gordon, from The Cox Company, who presented the Board with a review of the State’s 
Urban Development Areas Legislation.   Mr. Gordon discussed the Urban Development Area 
project, the process and how it will translate into the zoning text and comprehensive plan 
amendments.  Mr. Coffey mentioned the next steps would be:  Public Hearing on November 16, 
2011; amend the Zoning Ordnance and Comprehensive Plan; look at what will be needed in this 
area such as Water and Sewer, Integrated Transportation Network (proposed), Civic Space 
(proposed), Transportation Engineering, Utility Engineering and Geotechnical.  
 
Pleasant Grove Active Park Master Plan – Mr. Dwight Godwin, Director of Parks and 
Recreation, introduced Mr. Don Rismeyer, A. Morton Thomas and Associates, who presented 
the Board with an overview of the Pleasant Grove Active Park Master Plan.  Mr. Rismeyer 
discussed the importance of a Master Plan, the survey used and the proposed projects on the 
Master Plan. 
 
ACTION MATTERS 
Adoption of the Draft 2012 Thomas Jefferson Planning District Legislative Program– Mr. David 
Blount, TJPDC Legislative Liaison, addressed the Board regarding this issue and reviewed the 
changes to the program.   
After Board discussion the following motion was offered: 
 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to adopt the 2012 Draft Thomas Jefferson Planning District 
(TJPD) Legislative Program, understanding that additional, suggested revisions to 
the draft may be incorporated into the final version.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The 
motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, 
Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 

 
Adoption of the Economic Development Commission Strategic and Business Plan – Mr. Darren 
Coffey, Planning Director, addressed the Board regarding this item. 
After Board discussion the following motion was offered: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to adopt the Economic Development Business and Strategic 
Plan as prepared by the Economic Development Commission and dated October 
19, 2011   Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-1.  AYES:  
Gooch, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild, and Chesser.   NAYS:  Weaver.  ABSENT:  
None. 

 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 4 
 

 

Approval of the Pleasant Grove Active Park Master Plan – Mr. Dwight Godwin, Director of 
Parks and Recreation, addressed the Board regarding this item.   
After Board discussion, the following motion was offered: 

MOTION: 
Mr. Chesser moved that the Board approve the final layout design of the Pleasant 
Grove Active Park Master Plan, developed by A. Morton Thomas and Associates, 
for future recreation facility development.   Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion 
carried with a vote of 5-1.  AYES:  Gooch, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and 
Chesser.   NAYS:  Weaver.  ABSENT:  None. 

 
Request for Funding to Complete Erosion & Sediment Control Plan – Mr. Dwight Godwin, 
Director of Parks and Recreation, addressed the Board requesting funding to complete a required 
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan for two additional ball fields at Pleasant Grove Park using 
the excess soil from the construction of the new high school. 
After Board discussion, the following motions were offered: 

MOTION: 
Mrs. Booker moved that the Board approve an appropriation in the amount of 
$7,800 from the Board of Supervisors contingency fund 10086000-405870, to 
develop an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan for the construction of two (2) 
new ball fields at Pleasant Grove Park.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion 
carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild 
and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 

 
MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Board enter into a professional services contract with 
A. Morton Thomas and Associates, to develop the Erosion and Sediment Plan for 
the construction of two (2) new athletic fields at Pleasant Grove Park.  Mr. 
Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 

 
EMS Presentation – Mr. Leonard Bozza, Lake Monticello Rescue, reviewed with the Board the 
urgent need for additional staffing of rescue coverage for the County.  The EMS Committee is 
requesting Board of Supervisors representation on the County EMS Committee to help formulate 
recommendations on adequate staffing and revenue sources for the staffing.   
Chairman Gooch appointed Mr. Kenney and Mr. Fairchild to the County EMS Committee and 
requested the committee to return to the Board in a month with a recommendation. 
Mr. Garland Nuckols discussed how revenue recovery is working with Louisa County.   
 
Change in Town of Columbia Polling Place – Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, addressed 
the Board regarding this request.  The Town of Columbia is requesting assistance with changing 
the polling place and timing for the Town elections to allow Columbia residents to vote at one 
location at the same time all other local, state and national elections are held. 
After Board discussion the following motion was offered: 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 5 
 

 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved to instruct the County Administrator and the County Attorney 
to prepare the required documents and facilitate the steps required, to assist the 
Columbia Town Council in changing the polling location and timing of the 
Council elections.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-1.  
AYES:  Gooch, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  Weaver.  
ABSENT:  None. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Budget Matters – Mr. Weaver asked for clarification on where the bonus money was pulled 
from.  Staff was directed to research where the remainder of the bonus money came from and 
where did the Board direct the money to come from.   
Mr. Weaver had some concerns regarding the $125,000.00 scholarship fund, who would monitor 
it and could the money be better used somewhere else.  Mr. Kenney mentioned that the Fluvanna 
County Education Foundation will speak to the Board at the next meeting; and their presentation 
should address those concerns.  
 
Munis Conversion – Mr. Fairchild inquired on the integrity of the new system.  Ms. Hoover 
stated there is not an integrity problem with the system, just growing pains, in the transition from 
the Bright System to the Munis System. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Sign Ordinance – Mr. Gooch asked what the options for Mr. Jim Toms’ sign issue are.  Mr. 
Payne suggested the business owner propose an amendment to Mr. Coffey and let him evaluate 
it. 
 
Budget Retreat – The Board discussed scheduling a budget retreat and having Mr. Grant Tate 
facilitate for November 18, 2011.  December 2, 2011, would work better for most Board 
members.  Chairman Gooch was going to check with Mr. Tate and let everyone know. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 
Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 
With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public comments. 
 
EXTEND MEETING  

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 8:00 p.m. 
Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Booker, 
Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: None. 

 
RECESS 
The Board recessed at 5:32 p.m., for dinner. 
 
RECONVENE 
The Board reconvened at 6:03 p.m.. 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 6 
 

 

CLOSED MEETING 
MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 

At 6:04 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 
of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing Personnel.   Mr. 
Kenney seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 
 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 
At 8:07 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors convene again in open session. Mr. 
Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. (Meeting was extended in closed session.) 
 

MOTION: 
At 8:08 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 
of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, November 2nd, 2011, 
on motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Kenney and carried by the following 
vote: AYES:  Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Chesser, Fairchild and Weaver. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: None. 
 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved to ratify the exception to the meeting. 
Mr. Fairchild seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Booker, 
Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: None. 

 
Mr. Kenney notified the Board that Mr. Jay Scudder resigned his position as County 
Administrator effective this evening. 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, November 2nd, 2011 

Page 7 
 

 

ADJOURN 
MOTION: 

At 8:09 p.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, 
November 2nd, 2011. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-
0. AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: 
None.  ABSENT: None  

 
ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________               
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 
 
 





Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 1 
 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

November 16th, 2011 
7:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  
    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 
Joe Chesser 

    Chris Fairchild 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Fred Payne, County Attorney 
    Darren Coffey, Planning Director 

Steven Tugwell, Planner 
    Andrew Pompei, Planner 

Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
    Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 
    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of November 16th, 2011, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited; after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 
 
REPORTS 
Chairman Gooch reported on the following topics: 
 Basics of Composting – Saturday, November 19, 3-5pm in the Terrace room at the Lake 

Monticello Club House. 
 Economic Development Director – Received 10 applications to date and placing ad in 

Richmond Times Dispatch. 
 John May is donating some farm equipment. 
 County Swimming Pool – Some residents have shown interest in raising funds for the 

pool. 
 Social Services Move – Facilities did a great job getting them moved in. 
 Fluvanna County SPCA – Facilities is working on bringing the building up to state 

standards. 
 Earthquake Relief – Possibility to receive relief from FEMA. 
 Economic Development – Need to decide in what direction the County would like to go. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 
Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 
 Minor Eager, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to funds taken from the 

reserve account for the CIP. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 2 
 
 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to funds taken from 

the reserve account for the CIP, along with the expenses of Board members during the 
VACO conference.  

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 
 Minutes of October 19th, 2011. 
 Budget Transfer for County Attorney Services. 

Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None 

 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ZMP 11:02, Southern Land Holdings, LLC/ B-C with amended proffers  
An ordinance to amend the proffers associated with ZMP 01:01 of the Fluvanna County 
Zoning Map, with respect to 1.43 acres of Tax Map 18B, Section 5, Parcel 1, to allow 
commercial greenhouses the uses permitted by-right within the B-C, Business, 
Convenience District. The affected properties are located on the north side of Route 618 
(Lake Monticello Road) approximately 1000 feet west of its intersection with Route 600 
(South Boston Road). This property is located in the Palmyra Election District and is 
within the Rivanna Community Planning Area. 
Mr. Steven Tugwell, Planner, addressed the Board regarding this item. 
Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing.  
 Stuart Guskind, applicant of the request – apologized to the Board for the 

misunderstanding of the proffer, intent was to allow strictly for greenhouses. 
 John Danna, Palmyra District - addressed the Board in regards to the hours of operation. 
 Tom Morache, owner of business next door – addressed the Board in support of this 

request. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 
Board discussed time limits for this request.  Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney reminded the 
Board this is proffer-based, not allowed to require conditions.  Chairman Gooch suggested this 
request to later in the meeting to allow Mr. Coffey and Mr. Payne time to research the Zoning 
Ordinance in reference to time restrictions. 
 
CPA 11:01, Fluvanna County – Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment  
A request to amend the Comprehensive Plan, by adding text and illustrations, to 
strengthen the County’s Urban Development Area (UDA) section, which is required by 
Virginia Code 15.2-2223.1. The Comprehensive Plan discusses UDAs, as required by the 
Code; but these provisions will provide more detail and clarity as to the County’s vision 
for its UDA. In addition to UDA amendments to the Land Use and Transportation 
chapters, the County is also incorporating Telecommunications Master Plan text into the 
Infrastructure chapter to reflect more accurately the County’s policies with regard to this 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 3 
 
critical infrastructure. This amendment to the Comprehensive Plan is necessary in order 
for the County to properly describe its current policies, and to enable the UDA vision and 
Telecommunications Master Plan more effectively. This proposed amendment to the plan 
not only furthers the vision and goals set forth previously, but is consistent with the other 
chapters of the plan. 
Mr. Andrew Pompei, Planner, addressed the Board regarding this item. 
Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing.  
With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to approve CPA 11:01, a request to amend the Land Use, 
Transportation, and Infrastructure chapters of the Comprehensive Plan (and 
associated changes) to further the vision and goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-1.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  Kenney.  ABSENT:  None 

 
Chairman Gooch returned to the ZMP 11:02, Southern Land Holdings, LLC/ B-C with 
amended proffers request.  Mr. Payne stated that the ordinance; Chapter 5.1 of the 
County Code, doesn’t address commercial hours of operation it only addresses time 
restrictions of noise levels.  After some further discussion the applicant chose to 
withdraw this request. 
 
ZTA 11:03, Fluvanna County –Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance 
An ordinance to amend and reenact Article 14 of Chapter 22 of the Fluvanna County 
Code with respect to the regulation of Planned Unit Development (PUD) districts. The 
purpose of the proposed amendments is to ensure compliance with the State UDA 
legislation. These amendments are necessary to strengthen and improve the regulations 
already set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, and to promote higher quality and 
appropriately scaled PUD developments.  
Mr. Andrew Pompei, Planner, addressed the Board regarding this item. 
Mr. Weaver questioned the maximum height change for single-family housing and the definition 
of a minor change to the ordinance.  Mr. Todd Gordon (The Cox Company), Mr. Darren Coffey 
(Planning Director) and Mr. Fred Payne (County Attorney) addressed these questions.   
Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing.  
 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in regards to minor discretions in 

relation to VDOT and TIA requirements, also would like the Board to revisit the density 
requirement. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 
After Board discussion, the following motion was offered: 
 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to approve the attached ordinance for ZTA 11:03, a request 
to amend Article 14 of the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance to update and 
strengthen regulations regarding Planned Unit Development (PUD) districts. 
Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 4-2.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Booker, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  Kenney and Weaver.  ABSENT:  None 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
None 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 4 
 
ACTION MATTERS 
Budget Appropriation to Carry-Over the School FY 11 Local Appropriation – Ms. Renee 
Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding this item.   
After Board discussion, this request was deferred to the December 7, 2011, meeting to allow 
staff to clarify the motion with the total school budget amount.  Mrs. Booker was not in favor of 
deferring this request. 
 
EST 07:02 Barber, Demolition of a Dwelling – Mr. Darren Coffey, Planning Director, addressed 
the Board regarding this item. The property is currently for sale and; a prospective purchaser has 
expressed interest in demolishing the existing house and replacing it with a new house in the 
same location.  This house has been renovated several times and does not meet requirements for 
an historic dwelling. 
Mrs. Lynn Barber addressed the Board with regards to their plans for the property. 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the request to demolish 
the primary single-family dwelling of Conservation Easement 07:02 (Tax Map 
43-A-7); and to construct a new single-family dwelling of a size, character, and 
design, consistent with the provisions of the Conservation Easement Program and 
the existing conservation easement, in accordance with the property restrictions 
associated with the Deed of Easement. Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion 
carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild, Weaver 
and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None 

 
EPA Grant Signatory Authority – Mrs. Pat Groot, Grants Administrator, addressed the Board 
regarding this item.   

MOTION: 
Mr. Chesser moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the attached resolution 
granting authority to John Gooch, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors; Renee 
Hoover, Finance Director; and Patricia Groot, Grants Administrator to sign 
documents related to any grants or federal assistance provided by or through the 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), as detailed by the resolution.   
Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0:  Gooch, Weaver, 
Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
The following items were discussed: 
 EMS billing  
 Self Insurance Healthcare 
 Sign Ordinance – Addressed concerns about Mr. Jim Tom’s sign issue.  Board directed 

Planning Commission to revisit the sign ordinance. 
 Landseadel Shooting Range – Still receiving complaints.  Mr. Coffey stated no violation 

can be substantiated. 
Mr. Fairchild expressed his concerns about holding businesses accountable for statements they 
make when requesting approval. 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 5 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Chairman Gooch requested it be understood by the Board that if staff is asked to supply 
information to one Board member, it will be delivered to all Board members.  The Board agreed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 
Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 
 Charlene Harkrader, Kents Store – Addressed the Board in regards to getting the word 

out of possible earthquake relief for Fluvanna County residents from FEMA. 
 Dennis Holder – Addressed the Board in regards to the cavalier way the Board makes 

decisions for the County. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 
comments. 
 
Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, requested to add two more items to the closed meeting 
discussion; 
 Consideration of Acquisition of Real Property for a public purpose 
 Consultation with legal counsel regarding pending litigation. 

 
CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 
At 9:30 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 
of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing Personnel, Property 
and Legal Council.  Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  
AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  
ABSENT:  None. 
 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 
At 10:39 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors convene again in open session. Mr. 
Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 
Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 
 

MOTION: 
At 10:40 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County 
Board of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, November 16,  
2011, on motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Kenney and carried by the 
following vote: AYES:  Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Chesser, Fairchild and Weaver. 
NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 
 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 6 
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Kenney moved to appoint Darren Coffey as Interim County Administrator, in 
addition to his duties as Director of Planning, at a rate of pay for both positions 
equal to the pay rate of the last County Administrator. Mr. Chesser seconded. The 
motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES:  Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, 
Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: None  

 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, Chairman Gooch adjourned the Board of Supervisors meeting 
of November 16th, 2011 at 10:41p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________               
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 7 
 

Article 14. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PUD) 
 
Sec. 22-14-1. Statement of Intent 
  
 Planned unit developments (PUDs) are intended to promote the efficient use of land by 
allowing flexibility in design standards and variety in densities and land uses to preserve the 
rural areas of the county.  Development of such districts shall be in accordance with an approved 
PUD Application Package which should provide a variety and range of uses and densities in 
designated areas of the site. 
 
 Planned unit developments should be located within the designated growth areas of the 
county as set forth in the comprehensive plan, and should implement the goals of each 
Community Planning Area.  Planned unit developments should provide unified development that 
incorporates new urbanism and traditional neighborhood development principles, which includes 
a mix of residential and commercial uses, an interconnected system of internal roads, pedestrian 
sidewalks and walkways and well planned access points along existing roadways.  In addition to 
a mix of residential and commercial uses, planned developments should also provide a mix and 
variety of housing types.    
 
 The PUD District is intended to be applied to privately initiated zoning map amendments 
for land located within the County’s Community Planning Areas (CPAs) and the designated Zion 
Crossroads Urban Development Area (UDA).  The Zion Crossroad UDA is located internal to 
the Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area, as depicted on the Future Land Use Map, as 
amended.  The County’s designated CPAs and UDA include:   
 

a. Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area 
b. Zion Crossroads Urban Development Area 
c. Rivanna Community Planning Area 
d. Palmyra Community Planning Area 
e. Fork Union Community Planning Area 
f. Columbia Community Planning Area 
g. Scottsville Community Planning Area 

  
Sec. 22-14-2. Procedure for Rezoning 
 

(1) Prior to submitting an official rezoning application for a PUD, the applicant shall 
schedule a pre-application meeting with the Planning Director for an introductory work 
session to discuss the key elements and impacts of the proposed project.  The Planning 
Director and other County agency representatives may provide specific guidance on (a) 
application requirements, (b) timeframe for processing of the zoning map amendment 
application, (c) Comprehensive Plan compliance considerations, (d) identification issues 
related to public infrastructure and facilities, and (e) other matters as may be uniquely 
related to the applicant’s property.  At this meeting, the applicant shall present a 
preliminary sketch plan and other exhibits that depict the following:  (a) general 
boundary and location of property subject to the PUD rezoning application, (b) land area 
to be contained within the PUD District, (c) graphic representation of the arrangement of 
interior sub-areas, (d) planned mix of land uses and densities, and (e) general approach to 
addressing transportation, infrastructure and community facilities. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 8 
 

(2) After the pre-application meeting with staff, the applicant shall submit an application for 
rezoning with the Fluvanna County Planning Department.  The PUD Application 
Package shall consist of the following primary sections: a narrative, an existing 
conditions map, a PUD Application Plan, a transportation plan, street design guidelines, 
lot development criteria, community design guidelines, and a traffic impact analysis. 

(i) PUD Application Package Narrative 

a. A general statement of objectives to be achieved by the PUD district including a 
description of the character of the proposed development and the market for 
which the development is oriented; 

b. A list of all adjacent property owners; 

c. Site and lot development standards, including but not limited to mix of land uses, 
density for individual residential land uses, floor area ratios for non-residential 
uses, building setbacks and yard regulations, maximum heights, maximum project 
density, and lot coverage; 

d. Proposed utilities and implementation plan; including documentation of adequate 
public facilities. 

e. Phased implementation plan; 

f. Comprehensive signage plan; 

g. Descriptions of any architectural and community design guidelines including but 
not limited to a code of development, building designs, orientations, styles, 
lighting, etc.; 

h. Specific proffers and conditions (if proposed). 
 

(ii)   Existing Conditions Map 

a. Topography, including the identification of steep slopes (>20%), to be prepared 
with minimum 2’ contour elevations and 100’ horizontal scale, and current 
boundary survey of the property subject to the PUD district; 

b. Water features, including existing stream buffers and stormwater or erosion 
control measures; 

c. Roadways; 

d. Structures; 

e. Tree lines; 

f. Major utilities; 

g. Significant environmental features, including unsuitable soils for land 
development purposes, wetlands, and FEMA designated 100-year floodplains; 

h. Existing and proposed ownership of the site along with all adjacent property 
owners; 

i. Zoning of the site and adjacent properties. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 9 
 

j. Locations of public improvements and facilities, including rights of way and 
easements, as may be recognized by the Comprehensive Plan, the Future Land 
Use Map, the Official Transportation Map, or State transportation plans, as may 
be applicable. 

 
(iii)  PUD Application Package   

The PUD Application Package shall include a PUD Application Plan (master plan) to 
be prepared to a horizontal scale of 1”=100’ or as otherwise may be approved by the 
Planning Director to be of sufficient clarity and scale to accurately identify the 
location, nature, and character of the proposed planned unit development (PUD) 
district.  At a minimum, the PUD Application Plan shall include the following: 

a. Proposed PUD master plan layout and supporting land use documentation (tables, 
charts, etc.) for all proposed land uses within the PUD district, including the 
general location of uses, types of uses, mix of uses, lot types, density range of 
uses, and floor area ratio ranges; 

b. Methods of access from existing state maintained roads to proposed areas of 
development; 

c. General street alignments and parking areas, including proposed street sections 
and standards; 

d. General alignments of sidewalks, bicycle and pedestrian facilities; 

e. Schematic utility plans, indicating the infrastructure and facilities to serve the 
development, including but not limited to: water, sewer and storm drainage 
improvements, pump stations, treatment facilities, offsite improvements as 
needed, electrical substations, etc.; 

f. A general plan showing the location and acreage of the active and passive 
recreation spaces, parks, civic areas, and other public open areas; 

g. A general overall landscaping layout that includes methods of screening and 
buffering from adjacent properties and existing public right-of-ways, as well as 
stream buffers; 

h. A general stormwater management and best management practices master plan 
that includes how negative impacts to nearby streams, wetlands, surface water, 
and groundwater resources as a result of development would be avoided and 
mitigated;  

i. Phased development areas.  Subsequent subdivision plats and site plans should be 
closely correlated with master plan phases. 

j. A schematic grading plan for the area of the PUD property proposed for 
development, with finished grades to be prepared at a 5’ contour interval. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 10 
 

Planned Unit Development Master Plan 

k. Documentation and plan demonstrating general compliance with VDOT State 
Secondary Street Acceptance requirements and other requirements for public 
streets and intersections.  

  
(iv)   Traffic Impact Analysis  

a. The Planning Director shall determine whether or not the subject PUD District 
project shall require a traffic impact statement to be prepared consistent with 
VDOT 527 regulations. 

 
b. If a 527 traffic impact analysis is required, the Applicant shall prepare and 

submit a Pre-Scope of Work Meeting Form to the County on or before the date 
of formal submission of the zoning district amendment application.  The Pre-
Scope form shall be processed, reviewed by and between the County, VDOT 
and the Applicant in accord with adopted regulations and procedures. 

 
c. If a 527 Traffic Impact Analysis is not required, the Applicant shall meet with 

the Planning Director to determine the required scope for a traffic analysis for 
the PUD project. The Planning Director shall approve the elements to be 
addressed in the study scope.  The traffic analysis shall be submitted with the 
zoning amendment application. Minimum requirements may include the 
following: 

 
(1) Existing traffic counts (AM and PM peak hour) at intersections to be 

identified by the County. 

Commercial 
Center 

Residential 

Open Space 

Residential/ 
Mixed Use 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 11 
 

 
(2) Trip generation estimates for the planned land uses within the proposed 

development, employing Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 
methodologies. 

 
(3) Trip distribution and assignments to the existing road network of traffic 

projected for the development at full-buildout. 
 
(4) Estimates of background traffic growth on impacted streets and highways. 
 
(5) Analysis of future conditions, to include Highway Capacity Manual 

(HCM) level-of-service calculations for impacted intersections. 
 
(6) Signal warrants analysis. 
 
(7) Statement of recommended transportation improvements to provide 

adequate levels of service for the traffic generated by the proposed project. 
 

(3) The PUD application package shall not be scheduled for consideration by the Planning 
Commission until the Planning Director has determined that the package is complete.  
Except as the Planning Director may determine otherwise in a particular case, for reasons 
beyond the control of the applicant, any application package which is not complete within 
30 days after its submission shall be deemed to have been withdrawn and shall not be 
further processed.  Once the Planning Director has determined the application package to 
be complete, the following process shall commence: 

(i) The Planning Commission shall receive a public presentation on the proposed 
development at a regularly scheduled meeting, prior to advertising for a public 
hearing;   

(ii) The Planning Commission may schedule one or more work sessions to discuss the 
proposed development;  

(iii) Once a public hearing has been conducted by the Planning Commission, a 
recommendation shall be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for their 
consideration; 

(iv) The Board of Supervisors may schedule one or more work sessions to discuss the 
proposed development and the Planning Commission recommendation, prior to 
conducting their public hearing; 

(v) The plan approved by the Board of Supervisors shall constitute the final master plan 
for the PUD district. 

 
(4) All conditions and elements of the plan as submitted, including amendments and 

revisions thereto, shall be deemed to be proffers once the Board of Supervisors has 
approved the final master plan.  All such conditions and elements shall be enforceable by 
the County pursuant to Section 22-17-9 of this Code. 

(5)  The approved final master plan shall serve as the sketch plans for the subdivision and 
site plan process. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 12 
 

 
Planned Unit Development 

(6) Prior to development of the site, a final site development plan pursuant to Article 22-23 
of the zoning ordinance, shall be submitted for administrative review and approval for 
any business, limited industrial, or multi-family development. 

(7) Additionally, if any land within the district is to be subdivided, preliminary and final 
subdivision plats pursuant to the subdivision regulations of Chapter 19 of the Fluvanna 
County Code shall be submitted for administrative review and approval prior to 
development of the site.  Staff will determine if the submitted preliminary plats are in 
accordance with the approved final master plan.   

(8) If staff determines that the preliminary or final subdivision plats or final site plan are not 
in accord with the approved final master plan, such plans will be sent to the Planning 
Commission for review.  If the Planning Commission determines that such plans are not 
in accord with approved final master plan, the applicant shall then submit sketch plans for 
review and approval by the Planning Commission.  The sketch plans shall either be in 
accord with the approved final master plan, or a master plan amendment shall be applied 
for, in which case the amendment procedure set out in the zoning ordinance shall be 
followed. 

 
Sec. 22-14-3. Character of Development    
 
 The goal of the PUD district is to allow for and encourage development that incorporates 
new urbanism principles which includes: 

(1) Pedestrian orientation; 

(2) Neighborhood friendly streets and paths; 

(3) Interconnected streets and transportation networks; 

(4) Parks, recreation improvements, and open space as amenities; 

(5) Neighborhood centers and civic space;  



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 13 
 

(6) Buildings and spaces of appropriate scale; 

(7) Relegated parking; 

(8) Mixture of uses and use types; 

(9) Mixture of housing types and affordability; 

(10) Clear boundaries with any surrounding rural areas;  

(11) Environmentally sensitive design (i.e., sustainability and energy efficiency). 
 

(12) Adequate public facilities and infrastructure to serve the community. 
 
An application is not necessarily required to possess every characteristic of the PUD 

district as delineated above in order to be approved.  The size of the proposed district, its 
integration with surrounding districts, or other similar factors may prevent the application from 
possessing every characteristic. 

  
Sec. 22-14-4. Uses Permitted By-Right 
 
 In the PUD district, all uses permitted by-right in the residential (R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4), 
business (B-1 and B-C) and limited industrial (I-1) zoning districts may be permitted as 
enumerated in the final PUD application package.  Uses not specified within the PUD 
application package shall not be permitted.  (See Planning Staff for matrix for use by applicant to 
designate proposed by-right land uses to be included in the PUD district.  The applicant’s 
completed table shall be established as a condition of approval of the PUD Application Package.) 
 
Sec. 22-14-5. Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit 
 
 One or more of the uses permitted by special use permit in the residential and business 
zoning districts may be permitted in the PUD district, as enumerated in the final PUD application 
package, upon issuance of a special use permit by the Board of Supervisors.  Uses not specified 
within the PUD application package shall not be permitted.  (See Planning Staff for a matrix for 
use by applicant to designate proposed special use permit uses to be included in the PUD district.  
The applicant’s completed table, including special conditions imposed during the zoning 
application process, shall become an element of the PUD application package.) 
 
Sec. 22-14-6. Minimum Area Required for a Planned Unit Development 
 

(1) PUD districts shall be located on a single parcel of land or separate but contiguous 
parcels which are, or proposed to be, under common ownership, subject to approval of 
the rezoning application.  The minimum area required for a PUD district shall be as 
follows: 

 
(i) Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area: 20 acres 

(ii) Zion Crossroads Urban Development Area (applicable to a PUD district application 
on designated UDA land located within the Zion Crossroads CPA):   no minimum 
area required. 

(iii) Rivanna Community Planning Area: 10 acres 
(iv) Palmyra Community Planning Area: 5 acres 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 14 
 

 
Open Space 

(v) Fork Union Community Planning Area: 5 acres 
(vi) Columbia Community Planning Area: 5 acres 

(vii) Scottsville Community Planning Area: 5 acres 
 

(2) Additional land area may be added to an established PUD district if it is adjacent to and 
forms a logical addition to the approved development.  The procedure for an addition 
shall be the same as if an original PUD zoning amendment application was filed, and the 
requirements of this article shall apply, except the minimum acreage requirement. 

 
Sec. 22-14-7. Open Space, Recreation, Parks and Civic Areas 
 

(1) In the Community Planning Areas, not less than 30% of the gross area of a PUD district 
shall be preserved as open space, provided that supplemental regulations for application 
to the Zion Crossroads UDA apply as indicated herein below.  The required 30% open 
space may include private common and public open areas; perimeter open space; buffers 
between various uses, densities and adjacent properties; recreational space, neighborhood 
parks, civic areas; easements; water bodies and any undisturbed land not occupied by 
building lots, structures, streets, and parking lots.  By way of this section, yards of 
individual residences shall not be considered open space. 

(2) Land designated for future facilities (i.e. 
schools, fire and rescue stations, places of 
worship, daycare centers, etc.) shall not be 
included toward the open space. 

(3) Not less than 15% of the total open space 
shall be provided for active and/or passive 
recreational activities. 

(4) Private common open areas shall be owned, 
maintained and operated by a property 
owner’s association.  A property owner’s 
association document shall be prepared 
declaring and specifying the care and maintenance of the common areas.  This document 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Fluvanna County Attorney prior to final approval.   

(5) Upon request of the Applicant, the Planning Commission, at its sole discretion, (a) may 
decrease or eliminate certain requirements for open space and recreation land and 
improvements in a PUD District project, provided that the revised regulations shall be 
established and conditioned by the PUD Application Package. 

(6) For PUD projects in the Zion Crossroads UDA that are less than fifteen (15) acres in 
gross area, the Applicant may contribute to a pro-rata share fund lieu of provision for all 
or a portion of the required open space. The County shall reserve and employ these funds 
for the purpose of community open space, park, recreation, or civic space development 
within the Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area. 

(7) For PUD  projects in the Zion Crossroads UDA with a gross area of fifteen (15 acres) or 
greater, the quantity, location, mix, type, quality and phasing of open space, civic space, 
parks, recreation areas, buffer areas, and protected natural areas shall be consistent with 
the policies of the Comprehensive Plan or other criteria for traditional neighborhood 
development as may be established by the County.  These areas shall be delineated on the 
PUD Application Plan and may include greens, squares, plazas, community centers, club 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 15 
 

houses, swimming facilities, outdoor recreational fields, trails, pocket parks, or 
community gardens. 
 

Sec. 22-14-8. Density 
 

(1) The maximum residential base density permitted for individual land uses to be located in 
the PUD districts shall be as follows in Table 1 below. 

 
(2) The allowable density for individual uses within the PUD District shall be calculated 

based on the Net Acreage of the land subject to the PUD zoning amendment application.  
The calculation of minimum and maximum yield for individual uses shall be based on the 
application of the minimum and maximum density for each use (see Table 1) to an 
adjusted Net Acreage.  The Net Acreage reduces the gross area of the PUD land by the 
total of the non-qualifying land components within property. The Net Acreage = Gross 
Acreage - Non-Qualifying Area (acreage of the sum of the Non-Qualifying land 
components.)  The components that comprise the Non-Qualifying areas include:   

  area of existing dedicated public rights of way and easements 

  areas depicted on an adopted Official Transportation Map for future public 
improvements,  

  area of existing land uses and structures, including platted lots, that are intended 
to remain as a part of the PUD project,  

  areas deemed unbuildable due to geological, soils, or other environmental 
deficiencies,  

  areas of wetlands and floodplains (as defined by FEMA 100-year floodplain or 
engineering study),  

  area of existing ponds, stormwater management facilities, and water features that 
are not defined as wetlands or floodplains, and 

  area of terrain with slopes in excess of thirty percent (30%). 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 16 
 

 

PUD District Density Regulations 

Community Planning 
Area 

Minimum & Maximum Density 
Dwelling Units par acre for Residential – Floor Area Ration for Commercial 

 
Single 
Family 

min.       max. 

Townhouses 
min.       max. 

Multifamily 
min.       max. 

Commercial 
min.       max. 

Zion Crossroads 
Community Planning Area                6               9               16  

Zion Crossroads Urban 
Development Area 4             6 6             9 12           16  0.4 

Rivanna Community 
Planning Area                4               6               12  

Palmyra Community 
Planning Area                4               6               12  

Fork Union Community 
Planning Area                4               6               12  

Columbia Community 
Planning Area                4               6               12  

Scottsville Community 
Planning Area                4               6               12  

Table 1: PUD Density Regulations 

 

(3) An increase in the maximum residential density for a PUD district may be permitted in 
the following instances: 

Open Space: 

If 50% or more of the gross area of a PUD is preserved as open space, then a 20% 
increase in density may be permitted.  If 75% or more of the gross area of a PUD 
is preserved as open space, then a 30% increase in density may be permitted. 
 

Affordable Housing (as defined in the Comprehensive Plan): 

If between 10% and 15% of the total number of dwelling units within a PUD are 
reserved for affordable housing, then a 20% increase in density may be permitted.  
If more than 15% of the total number of dwelling units within a PUD are reserved 
for affordable housing, then a 30% increase in density may be permitted. 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 17 
 

Open Space and Affordable Housing: 

Density bonuses may also be permitted with a combination of both open space 
and affordable housing.  The increase in density that may be permitted shall be 
based on the following combinations of open space and affordable housing:   
 

Open Space 
Provided 

Affordable 
Housing Provided 

Density Bonus 
Permitted 

50% 10-15% 35% 
50% +15% 45% 
75% 10-15% 40% 
75% +15% 50% 

 

Transfer/Purchase of Development Rights: 

(Reserved for future Transfer of Development Rights/Purchase of Development 
Rights density bonuses) 
 

Sec. 22-14-9. Setbacks  
 

(1) Minimum setbacks and yard regulations for each planned land use within the PUD 
district shall be specifically enumerated in a table to be included in the PUD Application 
Package. 

(2) Lots at the perimeter of the PUD district shall conform to the setback requirements of the 
adjoining district, or to the setback requirements of the planned district, whichever is 
greater. 

(3) Refer to the Comprehensive Plan for illustrative examples of residential lot types for 
traditional neighborhood development projects. 

 
Sec. 22-14-10. Streets 
  

(1) Streets within the PUD district may be either public or private, but shall conform to 
VDOT road design standards.  Private subdivision streets shall be permitted in 
accordance with the provisions of Sec. 19-18-1(c) of this Code. 

(2) Alleys may be allowed within the PUD district provided they conform to either VDOT 
design standards or as otherwise prescribed in the master plan. 

(3) Sidewalks shall generally be provided on both sides of any streets, public or private, 
within the PUD district.  Sidewalks shall conform to VDOT standards. 

(4) Traffic access and circulation within the PUD district shall be designed to provide safe 
accommodation of all users of the transportation network including pedestrians and 
bicyclists.  Sidewalks, bicycle lanes and multi-use trails shall be provided where 
appropriate.  Mixed-use areas of the development shall be designed to give priority to 
pedestrian and bicycling traffic. 

(5) Internal streets within the PUD district shall be permitted to intersect with existing public 
streets to the extent necessary.  Such intersections shall provide reasonable access and 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 18 
 

 
Relegated Parking 

service to uses contained within the development and shall be developed using VDOT 
principles of access management. 

(6) Refer to the Comprehensive Plan for illustrative examples of residential streets for 
traditional neighborhood development projects. 

 
Sec. 22-14-11. Parking 
 

(1) Off-street parking facilities in mixed-use, 
business, industrial, and multi-family residential 
areas shall generally be relegated behind the 
front building line.   

(2) On-street parking shall be permitted, where 
appropriate. 

(3) In addition to the regulations included herein, 
all off-street parking shall be provided in 
accordance with the off-street parking and 
loading requirements of Article 22-26 of the zoning ordinance. 

(4) The provisions of Article 22-26 for the application of individual parking standards for 
projects located within the Zion Crossroads UDA may be modified at the discretion of 
the Planning Commission, provided that the Applicant submits a parking impact study 
that fully justifies the modification to the standards based on the mix of uses, the phasing 
of development, and other factors, including relationship of parking location to individual 
land uses within the project. 

 
Sec. 22-14-12. Height of Buildings 
 

The height regulations for the PUD district shall be as follows: 
 
 

PUD Maximum Heights 

Building Types Community Planning Areas 

 Zion Crossroads Rivanna Palmyra Fork 
Union Columbia Scottsville 

Single-Family  45 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 

Multi-Family  55 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 35 Feet 

Business, 
Industrial and 
Non-Residential  

75 Feet 55 Feet 45 Feet 45 Feet 55 Feet 35 Feet 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 19 
 

(1) For purposes of this section, height shall be the vertical distance of a structure measured 
from the highest finished grade to the highest point of the structure. 

(2) Spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television 
antennae and radio aerials: 60 feet from grade, unless otherwise enumerated in the master 
plan. 

(3) Roof-mounted mechanical equipment (i.e. air conditioners, condensers, ductwork, etc.) 
shall not be visible at any point from ground-level.  Parapet walls shall not extend more 
than four (4) feet above the maximum height permitted for buildings within the PUD 
district.  

(4) Buildings with a mixture of business and residential uses are subject to the height 
regulations of business, industrial and non-residential buildings. 

 
Sec. 22-14-13. Utilities 
 

(1) All uses and structures within a PUD district shall be served by both central water and 
sewerage systems, whether publicly or privately provided. 

(2) No overhead utility lines shall be permitted within a PUD district.  All utility lines, 
including but not limited to, electric, telephone, cable television lines, etc. shall be placed 
underground. 

(3) Telecommunications facilities are encouraged on the roofs of buildings within a PUD 
district to provide coverage to the district and surrounding area. 

 
Sec. 22-14-14. Building Design and Architecture 
 

(1) Within the multi-family residential, business, industrial, and mixed-use areas of a PUD 
district, building design styles shall be compatible with each other and shall exhibit 
consistency in terms of their exterior materials, architectural style, size, shape, scale, and 
massing. 

(2) With the exception of detached single family dwellings, building facades shall maintain a 
consistent street edge.  The street elevation of principal structures shall have at least one 
street-oriented entrance and contain the principal windows of the structure, with the 
exception of structures in a courtyard style. 

(3) Site plans shall include drawings, renderings, or perspectives of a professional quality 
which illustrate the scale, massing, roof shape, window size, shape and spacing, and 
exterior materials of the structure. 

 
Sec. 22-14-15. Amendment 
 

(1) The Planning Director may approve a minor change to an approved PUD Application 
Package and Application Plan at the written request of the owner of the development.  
For purposes of this section, a “minor change” refers to changes of location and design of 
buildings, structures, streets, parking, recreational facilities, open space, landscaping, 
utilities, or similar details which do not significantly change the character of the approved 
PUD application package and PUD master plan.   



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 20 
 

(2) If the Planning Director determines that the requested change constitutes a significant 
change, or something more than a minor change to the approved zoning application 
package, then the owner may seek an amendment to the PUD Application Package and 
Application Plan from the Board of Supervisors.  The application procedure for such an 
amendment shall be the same as the application procedure for the original approval. 

 
Sec. 22-14-16 Construction of Article 
 
 The provisions of this Article shall be construed in such manner as to be consistent with 
other provisions of this Code to the extent that such construction may be reasonably applied.  To 
the extent that any provision of this Article shall be inconsistent with any other provision of this 
Code, the provisions of this Article shall be deemed to be controlling. 
  

   
 
Note:  The term “shall generally”, as used in the context of this section of the ordinance, indicates that the stated 
requirement is expected unless there are compelling, specific, and extenuating circumstances for why it cannot be 
met. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 November 16th, 2011 

Page 21 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 
Wednesday, November 16th, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 

 
  Present     Vote 
  John Y. Gooch, Chairman   YEA 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chairman  YEA 
  Mozell H. Booker    YEA 
  Joseph Chesser    YEA 
  Chris S. Fairchild    YEA 

Donald W. Weaver    YEA 
             
 
 On a motion by Mr. Chesser, seconded by Mrs. Booker, and carried by a vote of 6-0, the 
following resolution was adopted. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE  

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
WHEREAS, the Environmental Protection agency requires grant recipients to designate 
representatives authorized to transact business associated with grants awarded, and 
 
WHEREAS, such designation is required as part of the application to access special 
appropriation funds earmarked for Fluvanna County under the State and Territorial Assistance 
Grant Program; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors does 
hereby name and appoint John Gooch, Chairman Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors as 
their authorized representative to transact and sign any and all documents related to securing 
all current and future U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Special Appropriation Act Project 
grants awarded Fluvanna County, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors does hereby 
name and appoint Renee Hoover, Director of Finance as their authorized representative to 
transact and sign payment request, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors does hereby 
name and appoint Patricia A. Groot, Grants Administrator as their authorized representative to 
transact and sign any and all grant administration documents. 
 
ADOPTED this 16th day of November, 

 
_________________________________________ 
John Y. Gooch, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

A COPY ATTEST: 
 
__________________ 
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board 





BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held 
on Wednesday, December 7th, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was 
taken: 
 
  Present     Vote 
  John Y. Gooch, Chairman    

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chairman   
  Mozell H. Booker     
  Joseph Chesser     
  Chris S. Fairchild     

Donald W. Weaver     
             
 
 On a motion by__________, seconded by __________, and carried by a vote of 
___, the following resolution was adopted. 

 
RESOLUTION 

Recognizing Gregory Edward Kenneth Palmer Award of Eagle Scout Status 
 
WHEREAS, Gregory Edward Kenneth Palmer has completed all the requirements for 
becoming an Eagle Scout; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gregory has been examined by an Eagle Scout Board of Review and 
deemed worthy of the Eagle Scout award; and 
 
WHEREAS, Boy Scout Troop 138 will be convening a Eagle Scout Court of Honor on 
January 8th, 2012 at 2:00 p.m. at Saints Peter and Paul Catholic Church, Palmyra, 
Virginia; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
joins Gregory’s family and friends in congratulating him on his achievements and the 
award of Eagle Scout status. 
 
 
 
 
Adopted this 7th, day of December 2011 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
 
       
John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
 

2



3

















From: Date:

Fund Code Object Code

Cost 

Account

Project 

Code

Program 

No.

100 318342

100 403100

Budget Comments:

Date

Recommended By:

Date

Source of Funding Date

Approved By:

DateBoard Chariman

GRAND TOTAL

Budget Analyst

Director of Finance

Reason for Request There are two invoices totaling $8,000 from CityScape Consultants for review

$0

Amount

($7,000.00)

$7,000.00

of cell tower applications.  There is an open purchase order of $1,000.00 to be applied towards a

portion of one invoice, leaving a remainder of $7,000.00.  The FY12 estimates were underestimated

for special use permits and the associated expenditures.

Requested by:

County Administrator

Department Head

Reviewed By:

10082500

County of Fluvanna, Virginia
TO:  Finance Department

Request for Supplemental Appropriation

Planning Development 12/7/11
Department

Org Code

10000013

Attachment A

2



Attachment B

3



Attachment C

4





2



3



4



5



6





RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A ROAD NAME: 
PALMER FARM LANE 

 
 
WHEREAS,   the establishment of an Enhanced 9-l-1 emergency telephone system in 
Fluvanna County has become effective; and 
 
WHEREAS, such system requires the assignment of names to all streets and roads in the 
County, the assignment of building numbers to all buildings having telephones and /or 
occupancies, and the erection of appropriate street signs at intersections; and  
 
WHEREAS, County staff has recommended this road name for consideration; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors is empowered to name streets, roads and alleys  
within the County in accordance with Section 18-2 of the Fluvanna County code that the 
road located off of Little Creek Road be named Palmer Farm Lane. 
 
 
Adopted this 7th day of December, 2011 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Mary Weaver 
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

Attachment A

2



                          Attachment B

3



Attachment C

4



5



6



Attachment D

7



8



9



































































































MOTION:  None required 
 
AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  December 7, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Status Update -- Exchange of property with Lake Monticello Owners’ Association 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 
TIMING:  In due course 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION:  The Board approved the exchange of TMP 8 A 22A (the old campground) 
owned by the County for TMP 9 A 2 (portion), 18 A 1D (portion) and 18 A 1E (along the 
Rivanna River) owned by LMOA on December 15, 2010.  Title work was ordered in January of 
2011 and plats were prepared by LMOA and were initially approved by the Planning Department 
and provided to the title insurance company in July of 2011.  The initial title insurance company 
ceased operations before providing the title work to the County, the order was moved to a 
different firm and the title work was finally received on October 3, 2011.  Upon review of the 
title work and the easements to be contained in the draft deed that has been prepared, the County 
Attorney considers it appropriate to report to the Board prior to proceeding with the closing.   
 
A copy of the draft deed, with the referenced plats attached, is included with this report.  Along 
with easements for access by the County in connection with the greenway trail, the deed reserves 
easements for LMOA for a parking area at State Route 600 and access to the Lake Monticello 
dam spillway. 
 
As expected, the title work discloses that the property being conveyed to the County may be 
subject to utility easements (specifically communication systems, water and sewer), and to prior 
abatements to the Commonwealth in connection with improvements to State Route 600, none of 
which appears to adversely affect the intended use of the property.  
 
There are also several matters affecting the property that we do not believe have any practical 
impact on the County’s intended use of the property for a greenway trail, but that need to be 
brought to the Board’s attention: 
 

1. The County’s title insurance policy will not insure that the County is receiving title to 
that portion of the property that lies below the mean high water mark of the Rivanna 
River (i.e., the bed of the river).  The deed that the County is receiving describes the 
property line as the centerline of the river, which is consistent with plats prepared and 
recorded in connection with the development of Lake Monticello.  However, to the 
extent that the Rivanna was historically navigable in this area, the ownership of the 
bed could only be conveyed by a land grant (the effects of which grants were 
governed by laws that changed over the years) and it would require extensive 



research, beyond what seems practically indicated at this time, to definitively 
determine this question. 

 
2. The County’s title insurance policy will not insure against water rights described in a 

certain 1964 deed.  To the extent that this affects the property, we do not think that it 
is inconsistent with the County’s intended use of the property for a greenway trail.  In 
addition, it appears that any rights under this deed are now vested in the Fluvanna 
County Historical Society, which, like the County, is interested in preserving and 
promoting the history of the Rivanna River navigation. 

 
3. The County’s title insurance policy will not insure against possible rights of others in 

and to the use of locks, canal bed and tow paths located on the insured property.  This 
exception appeared in the title policy issued to Lake Monticello Corporation in 1969 
and has been carried forward by the title insurance company.  We have conducted 
several hours of investigation into the acquisition and disposition of the properties of 
the Rivanna Navigation Company, which was the subject of a lawsuit for the purpose 
of liquidating the company that extended from approximately 1896 through 1913, 
including reviewing deed records and original suit papers in the Clerk’s Office, maps 
and other information available in the on-line records of the Board of Public Works at 
the Library of Virginia and publications of the Fluvanna County Historical Society.  
Other than a 1911 deed in the chain of title to this property, we have only identified 
one other potential conveyance out of that company (although the originating deed 
does not appear to have been recorded) that might affect this property.  Any interest 
under that conveyance is now vested in the Fluvanna County Historical Society under 
the same instrument mentioned above.  That deed purports to convey certain rights 
and land not previously conveyed, from the dam at Palmyra up to a point one-half a 
mile below the dam at Union Mills.  We think that at least some of the southern 
portion of this property may lie within that area.  Because any use of the property is 
substantially restricted by zoning and its location in the flood plain, and because we 
have been unable to identify any other possible interested party other than the 
Fluvanna County Historical Society, we do not think that any such rights, if they 
exist, would adversely affect the County’s intended use of the property for a 
greenway trail.  It would require extensive research, beyond what seems practically 
indicated at this time, and may or may not be possible, to definitively determine this 
question.  

 
4. The County’s title insurance policy will not insure the County against certain 

easements reserved by the developers of Lake Monticello (Lake Monticello 
Corporation and Monticello Development Corporation) when these (and a number of 
other properties) were conveyed to LMOA, including: 

 
a. An easement for use in connection with their development, construction, sales 

and related activities.  This does not appear to have any continuing practical 
impact on the property, as the development of Lake Monticello is essentially 
complete and any use of the property is substantially restricted by zoning and 
its location in the flood plain.  



 
b. An easement “for the benefit of current and future owners of property, now or 

heretofore owned by the Grantor and being developed as part of the Lake 
Monticello Subdivision, subject to the right of the Board of Directors of the 
[LMOA] to make reasonable regulations for the use of the lake, golf course, 
roads, improvements and other property herein conveyed.”  The County will 
succeed to the rights of LMOA with respect to this property, so that we 
believe, to the extent this creates any rights in others, that those rights are 
entirely consistent with the rights of the public to the use of public lands and 
the intended greenway trail.     

 
The County Attorney will be available to answer any questions that the Board may have. 
 
Attachments: 
- Proposed Deed and Plats 
- Commitment for Owner’s Title Insurance 
- 1964 Deed and Deed to Fluvanna County Historical Society 



Tyler Munis Financial Software 



 May 19, 2010 – Board awards contract to Tyler 
Technologies, appropriates funding 
 

 August 2010 – First software module installed 
 

 August 2011 – New IT Director / Project Manager 
 

 November 2011 – Utility Billing module live 
 
 August 2012 – Final module goes live 

 
Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 2 



 Appropriated:  $427,031.00 
 

 Expended:  $248,919.33 
 

 Available:  $178,111.67 

Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 3 



 Available in project budget: 

 $178,111.67 

 
 Remaining contractual obligation with Tyler:  

 $144,265.22 

 Remaining Tyler travel expenses (estimated): 

 $22,000.00 

 
 Project balance:  ~ $12,000 

 Professional services, hardware, contingency 

Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 4 



 General Ledger 
 Budget 
 Accounts Payable 
 Misc. Cash Receipts 
 Payroll 
 Utility Billing 

 
 

Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 5 



 Cashiering – Live in February 
 

 Employee Self-Service  
 

 Applicant Tracking 
 

 Tax – Live in August 2012 
 
 

Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 6 



 Original “sample project timeline” provided 
by Tyler in August 2010 suggested a go-live 
date for the final software modules in 
February 2012 
 

 Revised project timeline puts the final 
module go-live in August 2012 
 
 

Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 7 



 Original timeline proposed by Tyler was both 
optimistic and too aggressive 
 

 Loss of Project Manager (former IT Director 
Manny Rodriguez) had a negative impact 
 

 Current timeline is satisfactory and realistic 

Fluvanna County Department of Information Technology 8 



  

    

  
  
  

  
  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors   From: Steve Tugwell 
Case Number: EST 11:02     District: Fork Union 
Tax Map: Tax Map 30, Section A, portion of Parcel 14 Date:  December 7, 2011 
 
General Information:      This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, December 7, 2011 at 2:00 pm in the Circuit Court 
Room in the Courts Building.   

 
Owner/Applicant:  Palmyra Associates, LLC 
  
Representative:                Forbes R. Reback, Boyle, Bain, Reback & Slayton, Attorneys 
 
Requested Action:  To establish the creation of a Conservation Easement of 26.84 

acres of a portion of Tax Map 30-A-14, a total of 44.21 acres.  
(Attachment A)  

 
Location: The affected property is located to the south of U.S. Route 15 

(James Madison Highway), and borders the Rivanna River on the 
east.  (Attachment B) 

 
Existing Zoning:  A-1, Agricultural, General (proposed conservation easement part) 
 
Planning Area:  Palmyra Community Planning Area 
 
Existing Land Use:  Wooded, open land, Virginia Power Easement 
 
Adjacent Land Use:  The surrounding area is zoned A-1, Agricultural, General, and B-1, 

Business, General 
 
Zoning History: The Board of Supervisors approved a rezoning request for this 

property from A-1 to B-1 on March 19, 1997 (ZMP 96-11), The 
Board approved a modification to the proffers on November 3, 
1999, The Board approved a rezoning from A-1 and B-1 to B-1 on 
March 1, 2006, The Planning Commission approved a sketch for a 
major site plan on May 24, 2006.  

 
 
 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

1



  

    

 
 Purpose of Conservation Easements: 
 
As stated in Sec. 5.5-2. of the Fluvanna County Code, “The Board of Supervisors finds that a 
substantial area of rural land in the County has been converted to uses not consistent with or 
conducive to agriculture, forestry, or other traditional rural uses; that regulatory land-use 
planning tools may not, in themselves, be sufficient to inhibit the conversion of farm and forest 
land, clean water and airsheds, biological diversity, scenic vistas and rural character have a public 
value as well as a private value.  Therefore, the Board of Supervisors has determined that it is 
advisable to establish a program, pursuant to Virginia Code Sec.10.1-1700, et seq., by which the 
County can acquire conservation easements voluntarily offered by owners to serve as one means 
of assuring that the County’s resources are protected and efficiently used; to help in preserving 
open-space and the rural character of the County by (a) preserving farm and forest lands; (b) 
conserving and protecting water resources; (c) conserving and protecting biodiversity and 
wildlife and aquatic habitat; (d) improving the quality of life for the inhabitants of the County; (e) 
assuring availability of lands for agricultural, forestall, recreational, or open-space use; and (f) 
promoting tourism through the preservation of scenic resources”.  (Ord. 06-21-06)   
 
Analysis 
In accordance with Sec. 5.5-6 of the Fluvanna County Code, the Board of Supervisors must 
consider several criteria when determining whether to accept a proposed conservation easement: 
 
I. The use of the parcel subject to the conservation easement must be consistent with  
Comprehensive Plan; 
II. The proposed terms of the conservation deed of easement must be consistent with the 
minimum terms and conditions set forth in Sec. 5.5-7 of the County Code; and 
III. The acceptance of the proposed conservation easement is consistent with the purposes of the 
Conservation Easements Program. 
 
The subject parcel is located within the Palmyra Community Planning Area as identified by the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed conservation easement also surrounds a 2.48 acre county-
owned wastewater treatment facility.  Staff is concerned that if the conservation easement were 
placed in its proposed location, it could restrict the ability to expand the wastewater treatment 
facility in the future. 
 
Comprehensive Plan:   
  
Natural Environment 
As of 2010, there were 27 conservation and historic easements in the County, totaling 12,022.5 
acres.  Most of the easements are owned by the Virginia Outdoors Foundation.  The Board of 
Supervisors created a County easement program whereby the County, as a jurisdiction, may hold 
and protect easements.  In 2007, the County accepted the first easement under this program. 
 
Land Use Planning Area 
The Comprehensive Plan designates this area as within the Palmyra Community Planning Area.  
With regard to the Palmyra Community Planning Area, the Land Use section of the 

2



  

    

Comprehensive Plan states “a mixture of medium and small commercial businesses combines 
with office, civic, and residential uses to form a village-like neo-traditional development or 
series of interconnected developments”.  This application for a conservation easement is not in 
general conformance with the Comprehensive Plan because the subject parcel is located within a 
growth area. 

 
As stated in the applicant’s draft deed, the Easement is granted to Fluvanna County exclusively, 
and will be held in perpetuity.  Restrictions on the property include: 
 

1. The land may not be subdivided; 
2. Non-residential outbuildings and structures not to exceed 500 square feet in ground area 

unless prior written approval shall have been obtained from Grantee that a larger footprint 
is permitted considering the purpose of this easement and the scale of the proposed 
outbuilding or structure in relation to the surrounding area; 

3. Grantor shall give Grantee 30 days written notice before beginning construction or land 
clearing prior to construction or enlargement of any structure on the property; 

4. No building or structure shall be constructed within 250 feet of the west bank of the 
Rivanna River or the north bank of  Cunningham Creek; 

5. Private roads with permeable surfaces and utilities serve permitted buildings, structures, 
and other permitted uses, such as forestry and game management may be constructed and 
maintained; 

6. Industrial or commercial activities other than game management and forestry are 
prohibited, notwithstanding any other provision of this easement, no commercial 
recreational use shall be allowed on the property; 

7. Forest management will take place in accordance with a Forest Stewardship Management 
Plan approved by Virginia Department of Forestry; 

8. Land disturbing activities will be limited in nature and will be consistent with best   
management; 

9. Accumulation or dumping of trash, refuse, junk or toxic materials is not permitted on the 
property; 

10. The types of signs will be limited in type and will be no larger than nine (9) square feet; 
11. A 250 foot buffer strip shall be maintained along the west bank of the Rivanna River and 

the north bank of Cunningham Creek as measured from the top of the bank; 
12. The County has the right to enter onto the property to inspect it for compliance with the 

easement.   (Attachment C) 
 
Technical Review Committee: 
 
At the November 10, 2011 Technical Review Committee meeting, there were no comments with 
regard to this application.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
Staff believes that EST 11:02 is not in general conformance with the intent of Chapter 5.5, 
Conservation Easements Program and the Fluvanna County Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, 
approval of this application may not be appropriate.  When reviewing this application, the Board 
may want to consider how it does or does not meet the intentions of the Comprehensive Plan.  

3



  

    

The Board may also want to consider the potential impacts of establishing a conservation 
easement around a wastewater treatment facility. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 

I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny EST 11:02, a request to establish the 
creation of a Conservation Easement, 11:02 for 26.84 acres of Tax Map (30-A-84) [if approved] 
subject to the property restrictions listed in the staff report, the Deed of Easement being subject 
to approval as to form by the County Attorney. 
 
Attachments: 
 
A – Application  
B – Sketch Plan & letter from Attorney Reback 
C – Draft deed of easement 
D – Chapter 5.5 of the Fluvanna County Code 
 
Copy:   
Applicant – Palmyra Associates, LLC, 240 Stoneleigh Road, Palmyra, VA 22963  
Representative – Mr. Forbes R. Reback, Boyle, Bain, Reback & Slayton, 420 Park Street, Charlottesville, VA 22902  
File 

4



5

ATTACHMENT A



6



7



8

ATTACHMENT B 



9



10

ATTACHMENT C



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39

ATTACHMENT D



40



41



42









  
  
  
 
 
 

 
General Information:  This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, December 7, 2011 at 2:00 PM in the Circuit Court 
Room in the Courts Building. 

 
Owner/Applicant:  Helen E. Maben 
 
Representative:  E. Scott Smalley, Attorney 
  
Requested Action:  To establish a conservation easement, to be held by Fluvanna 

County, in connection with 94.558 acres of Tax Map 17-A-22 
(Attachment A). 

  
Fluvanna Code: Chapter 5.5 – Conservation Easements Program (Attachment E) 
 
Location: The subject property is located to the south side of State Route 636 

(Nahor Manor Road) approximately 1,500 feet west of its 
intersection with State Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) 
(Attachment B). 

 
Existing Zoning:  A-1, Agricultural, General 
 
Planning Area:  Rural Residential 
 
Existing Land Use:  Undeveloped Timberland (currently being timbered) 
 
Adjacent Land Use:   Adjacent properties are A-1, Agricultural, General.  
 
Zoning History:  No Activity per County Records. 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors From: Andrew Pompei 

Case Number:  EST 11:03   District: Cunningham 

Tax Map:       Tax Map 17-A-22  Date: December 7, 2011 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA   

“Responsive & Responsible Government”

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

1



Analysis 
 
This request is one component of an ongoing discussion between the applicant and County 
officials. The applicant has expressed interest in donating the property to the County, which 
would make it available for public use; however, there has been no formal agreement regarding 
this exchange. If the County received fee-simple interest in the property, it would not be able to 
administer the conservation easement; the easement would have to be transferred to another 
organization or government agency. Outside agencies will only accept the easement if the 
property and its associated deed restrictions meet their minimum requirements. The Virginia 
Department of Forestry (VDOF) has been contacted, and the agency is willing to consider 
acceptance of the easement in 2012.  
 
Per County Code (Sec. 5.5-6), the Board of Supervisors must consider several criteria when 
determining whether to accept a proposed conservation easement: 

 The use of the parcel subject to the conservation easement must be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan; 

 The proposed terms of the conservation deed of easement must be consistent with the 
minimum terms and conditions set forth in Sec. 5.5-7 of the County Code; and  

 The acceptance of the proposed conservation easement is consistent with the purposes of 
the Conservation Easements Program.  

Since the program’s inception in 2006, the Board of Supervisors has reviewed a number of 
requests by landowners wishing to donate conservation easements to the County. As of 
November 2011, the Board of Supervisors has accepted two conservation easements, which total 
approximately 225 acres.   

Comprehensive Plan 

According to the Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for rural residential 
uses. Rural residential areas are intended to retain their rural character, with limited residential 
development permitted in clusters that maximize the amount of open space preserved. Generally, 
residential densities may be up to one unit per two acres.  
 
Encumbering the subject property with a conservation easement could eventually help realize 
several goals of the Comprehensive Plan: 

 Protect environmental resources (Natural Environment: Goal 2). 

 Manage and protect surface water and groundwater resources (Natural Environment: 
Goal 3).  

 Effectively implement the Comprehensive Plan land-use strategies and the Future Land 
Use Map (Land Use: Goal 1). 

 Actively preserve and promote open space (Land Use: Goal 5).  

2



 Preserve and enhance Fluvanna’s unique identity and rural character (Community Design: 
Goal 1). 

Proposed Terms 

The easement will be granted to Fluvanna County exclusively and will be in place for perpetuity. 
Restrictions on the property include: 

 The land may not be subdivided; 

 Boundary line adjustments are permitted only with the approval of the Board of 
Supervisors;  

 One single-family dwelling, with up to 3,000 square feet of living area, may be 
constructed without the approval of the Board of Supervisors; 

 Non-residential outbuildings and structures over 2,000 square feet in ground area may 
not be constructed without the approval of the Board of Supervisors; 

 Farm buildings and structures over 4,500 square feet in ground area may not be 
constructed without the approval of the Board of Supervisors;  

 The collective footprint of all buildings and structures on the property (excluding roads) 
may not exceed 20,000 square feet without the approval of the Board of Supervisors; 

 Industrial and commercial activities are prohibited, except for agriculture (including 
livestock production), equine activities, forestry, and small-scale commercial or industrial 
operations related to those activities; 

 All forest activities conducted on the property must be in accordance with an approved 
Forest Stewardship Plan; 

 Riparian buffer strips that are at least 50 feet wide will be maintained along streams; 

 Grading, blasting, or earth removal may not materially alter the topography, except for 
dam construction, erosion and sediment control in accordance with a erosion and 
sediment control plan, or as required to construct permitted improvements; 

 The dumping of trash or toxic materials on the property is prohibited; and 

 No sign visible from outside the property may exceed 20 square feet in size without the 
approval of the Board of Supervisors, and total signage may not exceed 64 square feet. 

To enforce these restrictions, representatives of Fluvanna County may enter the property to 
perform inspections; except in cases of emergency, reasonable notice must be given before 
entering the property.  

3



Although the easement will benefit the public, the easement itself does not guarantee public 
access to the property. The owner retains the exclusive right to control access to the property 
(Attachment D).  

The above restrictions are consistent with the standards set forth by the VDOF, since the 
applicant’s intent is to convey the easement to that agency in the future.  

Consistency with the Purposes of the Conservation Easements Program 

The purpose of the Conservation Easements Program is clearly defined in the County Code. As 
stated in Sec. 5.5-2., “The Board of Supervisors finds that a substantial area of rural land in the 
County has been converted to uses not consistent with or conducive to agriculture, forestry, or 
other traditional rural uses; that regulatory land-use planning tools may not, in themselves, be 
sufficient to inhibit the conversion of farm and forest land, clean water and airsheds, biological 
diversity, scenic vistas and rural character have a public value as well as a private value.  
Therefore, the Board of Supervisors has determined that it is advisable to establish a program, 
pursuant to Virginia Code Sec.10.1-1700, et seq., by which the County can acquire conservation 
easements voluntarily offered by owners to serve as one means of assuring that the County’s 
resources are protected and efficiently used; to help in preserving open-space and the rural 
character of the County by (a) preserving farm and forest lands; (b) conserving and protecting 
water resources; (c) conserving and protecting biodiversity and wildlife and aquatic habitat; (d) 
improving the quality of life for the inhabitants of the County; (e) assuring availability of lands 
for agricultural, forestal, recreational, or open-space use; and (f) promoting tourism through the 
preservation of scenic resources” (Ord. 06-21-06).   
 
The Maben property is timberland, and the most recent harvest began in early November 2011 
(Attachment C). A small stream flows across the southern portion of the property. The easement 
would ensure the long-term preservation of a sizeable property near one of the County’s major 
population centers (Lake Monticello). When re-established after the recent clear-cutting, the 
forests on the subject property will not only act as a buffer between designated rural areas and 
the more heavily-developed Rivanna Community Planning Area, but serve as wildlife habitat. 
Portions of a tributary to the North Fork of Cunningham Creek would be conserved, helping to 
protect the water quality of Cunningham Creek and the Rivanna River. Since the easement will 
protect these environmental features and contribute to the rural character of the County, its 
acceptance would be consistent with the purposes of the Conservation Easements Program.  
 
If developed by-right as a rural cluster development (per the provisions of the A-1 Zoning 
District), approximately 45 lots could be created.  
 
Technical Review Committee 
 
At the Technical Review Committee (TRC) meeting on November 10, 2011, there were several 
comments regarding the proposal: 

 A representative from the Central Virginia Electric Cooperative stated that the company 
has a power line that runs along State Route 636 (Nahor Manor Road) and is located 
within a 40’ right-of-way. 

4



  55

 A representative of the Building Department (Erosion & Sediment Control) stated that 
the property is being timbered according to a forest management plan prepared several 
decades ago. 

 A representative of the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) stated that a road 
entrance for a logging operation has recently been approved.  

 A representative of the Planning Commission stated that he believed a special-use permit 
for an electricity generation facility was considered several years ago. After further 
research, it was discovered that the proposed special-use permit (SUP 01-01) was 
applicable to neighboring parcels (Tax Map No. 17-A-52A, 17-A-26, 17-8-B).  

Conclusion 
 
Staff believes that EST 11:03 meets the intent of Chapter 5.5 of the County Code (Conservation 
Easements Program) and the Fluvanna County Comprehensive Plan. When reviewing this 
request, the Board of Supervisors should not only consider the characteristics of the property 
itself, but the long-term intentions of the owner to transfer fee-simple ownership to the County. 
If the owner wishes to donate the property to the County at a later date, it may not be appropriate 
for the Board of Supervisors to accept a conservation easement at this time. The donation of an 
easement to the VDOF in 2012 may be a more appropriate course of action, since the property is 
under a timber management plan and may be given to the County for recreational use.  

 
Suggested Motion 
 
I move that the Board of Supervisors [approve/deny] EST 11:03, a request to establish a 
conservation easement, to be held by Fluvanna County, in connection with 94.558 acres of Tax 
Map 17-A-22. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Application 
B. Maps of the Subject Property 
C. Photographs of the Subject Property 
D. Deed of Easement 
E. Chapter 5.5 (Conservation Easements Program) of the County Code 
 
 
Copy 
Applicant: Helen E. Maben (102 Woodrow Road, Winchester, VA 22602) 
Representative: Attorney E. Scott Smalley (P.O. Box 644, Berryville, VA 22611) 
 
 
 
 
 



6

Attachment A



7



8



Rural Residential

Rivanna Community Planning Area

NAHOR MANOR ROAD

³

Fluvanna County 

November 2, 2011

Maben Property:
Future Land Use

Dept. of Planning & Community Development

Parcels

Subject Property

Community Planning Areas

Rural Preservation

Rural Residential

Town Boundaries

9

Attachment B



NAHOR MANOR ROAD

³

Fluvanna County 

November 2, 2011

Maben Property:
Zoning

Dept. of Planning & Community Development

Parcels

Subject Property

A-1

B-1

B-C

I-1

I-2

MHP

R-1

R-2

R-3

R-4

10



NAHOR MANOR ROAD

³

Fluvanna County 

November 2, 2011

Maben Property:
Aerial Photos

Dept. of Planning & Community Development

Parcels

Subject Property

11



48
0

440

400

480

44
0

480

48
0

40
0

NAHOR MANOR ROAD

³

Fluvanna County 

November 2, 2011

Maben Property:
Topography

Dept. of Planning & Community Development

Parcels

Subject Property

4' Contours

12



Attachment C: Photographs of Tax Map 17-A-22 
EST 11:03 (Maben) 

 

 
Figure 1: View of Subject Property from the Logging Entrance on State Route 636 (Nahor Manor Road) on 

November 28, 2011 
 

13

Attachment C



 
Figure 2: View of Subject Property from State Route 636 (Nahor Manor Road) West of the Logging 

Entrance on November 28, 2011 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Draft 6 – 11/11/2011 
 
Prepared by:  E. Scott Smalley, Esq. 
                      16 North Church Street 
                      P.O. Box 644 
                      Berryville, VA   22611 
                               

 
Tax Map No. :. 17-A-22 
 

Exempted from recordation tax 
under the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 

Sections 58.1-811 (A) (3), 58.1-811 (D)  
and from Circuit Court Clerk’s fee under Section 17.1-266 

 
 

 THIS DEED OF GIFT OF EASEMENT (this “Easement”), made this ____ day of November, 
2011, between Helen E. Maben, whose address is 102 Woodrow Road, Winchester, VA  22602, 
(“Grantor”); and The County of Fluvanna, Virginia, a political subdivision of the COMMONWEALTH 
OF VIRGINIA, whose address is P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, Virginia  22963 (“Grantee”) (the designations 
“Grantor” and “Grantee” refer to the Grantor and Grantee and their respective successors and assigns);   

 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of real property situated on Nahor Manor Road in 
Fluvanna County, Virginia, containing approximately 94.558 acres as further described below (the 
“Property”), and desires to give and convey to Grantee a perpetual conservation and open-space easement 
over the Property as herein set forth; and  

 
WHEREAS, the specific conservation values of the Property include the following:  
 
 a. forest: approximately 90 acres of the Property are covered in stands of mature loblolly 

pine trees managed for sustainable timber production, scenic values, wildlife habitat, and water quality. 
 
 b. watershed protection: the Property contains small wetlands, and perennial and 

intermittent streams protected by existing vegetated and forested buffers; 
 
 c. natural habitat: the Property’s forest cover and streams provide habitat for a variety of 

wildlife and plant species, and the maintenance of such natural habitat helps support wildlife and fisheries 
populations in the local ecosystem, which is largely in a natural, undeveloped state; 

 
 d. scenic: the Property contributes to the scenic views enjoyed by the public from Nahor 

Manor Road; 
  
  

15

Attachment D



 e. general open space: the Property is substantially undeveloped, is used primarily for 
forestry, and wildlife habitat purposes, and contains features such as mature forest and riparian areas, all 
of which provide general open space benefits to the public; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Grantee is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia and a “qualified 
organization” and “eligible donee” under Section 170(h)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (references to 
the Internal Revenue Code in this Easement shall be to the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
as amended, and the applicable regulations and rulings issued thereunder, or the corresponding provision 
of any subsequent federal tax laws and regulations) (the “IRC”) and Treasury Regulation §1.170A-
14(c)(1) and is willing to accept a perpetual conservation and open-space easement over the Property as 
herein set forth; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 461 of the Acts of 1966, codified in Chapter 17, Title 10.1, §§10.1-1700 
through 10.1-1705 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended (the “Open-Space Land Act”), declares 
that the preservation of open-space land serves a public purpose by curbing urban sprawl, preventing the 
spread of urban blight and deterioration and encouraging more economic and desirable urban 
development, and conserving land and other natural resources, and authorizes the acquisition of interests 
in real property, including easements in gross, as a means of preserving open-space land; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 10.1-1700 and 10.1-1703 of the Open-Space Land Act, the 
purposes of this Easement include retaining and protecting open-space and natural resource values of the 
Property, and the limitation on division, residential construction and commercial and industrial uses 
contained in Section II ensures that the Property will remain perpetually available for agricultural, forestal 
and open-space use, protecting natural resources, and maintaining and enhancing air and water quality, all 
as more particularly set forth below; and 
 

 WHEREAS, as required under Section 10.1-1701 of the Open-Space Land Act, the use of the 
Property for open-space land conforms to the County of Fluvanna Comprehensive Plan;  
 
              WHEREAS, this Easement is intended to constitute (i) a “qualified conservation contribution” as 
defined in IRC Section 170(h)(1) as  more particularly explained below, and (ii) a qualifying “interest in 
land” under the Virginia Land Conservation Incentives Act of 1999 (Section 58.1-510 et seq. of the Code 
of Virginia (1950), as amended); and  
 
           WHEREAS, this Easement is granted “exclusively for conservation purposes” under IRC 
§170(h)(1)(C) because it effects “the preservation of certain open-space (including farmland and forest 
land) under IRC Section 170(h)(4)(A)(iii). Specifically, the preservation of open-space on the Property is 
pursuant to clearly delineated state and local governmental conservation policies and will yield a 
significant public benefit; and  
 

WHEREAS, this open-space easement in gross constitutes a restriction granted in perpetuity on 
the use which may be made of the Property, and is in furtherance of and pursuant to the clearly delineated 
governmental conservation policies set forth below: 

 
(i) Land conservation policies of the Commonwealth of Virginia as set forth in:   
 

16



 a. Section 1 of Article XI of the Constitution of Virginia, which states that it is the 
Commonwealth’s policy to protect its atmosphere, lands and waters from pollution, impairment, or 
destruction, for the benefit, enjoyment, and general welfare of the people of the Commonwealth; 

 
 b. The Open-Space Land Act cited above;  
 

  c. Chapter 11 of Title 10.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, which establishes 
the Virginia Department of Forestry and sets forth its powers and authority;  
 
  d. The Virginia Land Conservation Incentives Act, Chapter 3 of Title 58.1, §§ 58.1-510 
through 58.1-513 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, which supplements existing land 
conservation programs to further encourage the preservation and sustainability of the Commonwealth’s 
unique natural resources, wildlife habitats, open spaces and forest resources;  
 
  e. Grantee’s formal practices in reviewing and accepting this Easement; Grantee has 
engaged in a rigorous review, considered and evaluated the benefits provided by this Easement to the 
general public as set forth in these Recitals, and concluded that the protection afforded the open-space 
character of the Property by this Easement will yield a significant public benefit and further the open-
space conservation objectives of Grantee and the Commonwealth of Virginia; such review and acceptance 
of this Easement by Grantee, a government agency, tends to establish a clearly delineated governmental 
conservation policy as required under IRC Section 170(h)(4)(A)(iii); and 

 
(ii) Land use policies of the County of Fluvanna (the “County”) as follows: 
 
 a.  The County’s Comprehensive Plan adopted on March 18, 2009 to which plan the 

restrictions in this deed conform contains the following provisions: 
 
  1.  In the Vision 2029 section, the following key goals, which are used as guides for 

future development and land use policies: 
 

 To preserve natural resources. 
 To preserve rural character. 

 
  2.  The Natural Environment Chapter, under Existing Conditions, in referencing the 

Forest Resources states:   
 
   Aside from economic and aesthetic benefits, forests contribute many 

ecoservices like stormwater management (both quality and quantity), wildlife habitat protection, 
minimization of erosion, groundwater recharge, carbon sequestration and insect pollination. 

 
  - Under Vision, provides that conservation easements continue to be valuable tools 

for land preservation and conservation and cites the existing County’s conservation and historic 
easements including the conservation easements held by the County under its conservation easement 
program, all as an ongoing active effort to conserve land throughout the County. 

 
  - Under Course of Action, Goal 1 states: 

17



 
  To develop land-use policies and regulations that will preserve and enhance the 

County’s Natural Environment and Implementation Strategy 7. states: Actively encourage and facilitate 
conservation easements on land that meets the IRS’s criteria for easement donation. 

 
  3.   The Land-use Chapter, Under Vision, Goal 5 provides:  to actively preserve and 

promote open space and Implementation Strategy 1. states:  Promote the County’s conservation program 
along with other open-space preservation alternatives.  

 
  4.  - The Land Use Chapter further provides that forestal operations protect the 

County’s watershed and should be encouraged to institute best managements practices to minimize soil 
loss and nutrient loading of streams. 

 
  -  That Chapter further provides that the County should encourage wider use of 

conservation easements as a means of protecting natural resources and open space. 
  
   b.   County Code Chapter 5.5 adopted June 21, 2006 effective July 1, 2006 sets forth the 

County’s Conservation Easements Program pursuant to which this Easement is given and accepted; and, 
 
 c.  The County’s zoning classification for the property is A-1, Agricultural, General 

District, the primary objectives of this district are to conserve water and other natural resources, reduce 
soil erosion, protect watersheds and reduce hazards from floods; to preserve the rural character of the 
county, to promote existing forestry operations, and to promote the retention of undisturbed open space, 
with forestal uses and conservation areas being encouraged as by right permitted uses. 

 
  d. The County has determined that it is desirable to encourage the continued preservation 
of the Property as open space and agricultural/forest land by providing for preferential use value taxation 
of the Property under Section 20-4-1, et. seq. of the County Code and Sections 58.1-3230 through 58.1-
3244 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, which authorize special use-value tax assessments for 
real estate devoted to agricultural, forestal, horticultural and open-space use; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Easement will yield significant public benefit to the citizens of the 
Commonwealth as set forth in the Recitals above. 
 

 a. The preservation of the open space character of the Property prevents 
development of the Property which existing and foreseeable trends in the vicinity of the Property 
indicate is increasing rapidly and which would lead to or contribute to the degradation of the 
scenic, natural, or historic character of the area; 

 
 b. This Easement will operate as a covenant to assure that sustainable forest 

management practices are observed, which covenant will run with the Property in perpetuity, thus 
providing continuous supplies of forest products and environmental services such as clean air and 
water, wildlife habitat, and a potential resource land base for educational, scientific, and private 
recreational activities that retains and enhances quality habitat and biodiversity; 

 

18



 c. The preservation of the open space character of the Property prevents excessive 
development, soil disturbance, and pollution on the Property, thus enhancing water quality and (i) 
improving the public drinking water for various communities and (ii) improving aquatic and 
riparian habitat downstream; 

  
 d. The preservation of the open space character of the Property preserves a local or 

regional landscape or resource that attracts tourism and commerce to the area and enhances the 
quality of life for area residents; and 
 

WHEREAS, Grantor and Grantee desire to protect in perpetuity the conservation values of the 
Property as specified in Section I by restricting the use of the Property as set forth in Section II; and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantee has determined that the restrictions set forth in Section II (the “Restrictions”) 

will preserve and protect in perpetuity the conservation values of the Property, which values are reflected 
in Section I; and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantee has determined that the Restrictions will limit use of the Property to those 

uses consistent with, and not adversely affecting, the conservation values of the Property and the 
governmental conservation policies furthered by the Easement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantee, by acceptance of this Easement, designates the Property as property to be 

retained and used in perpetuity for the preservation and provision of open-space land pursuant to the 
Open-Space Land Act; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals incorporated herein and made a 

part hereof and of the mutual covenants herein and their acceptance by Grantee, Grantor does hereby give, 
grant and convey to Grantee a conservation and open-space easement in gross (Easement) over, and the 
right in perpetuity to restrict the use of, the Property, which is described below and consists of 
approximately 94.558 acres in gross located in Cunningham Magisterial District, Fluvanna County, 
Virginia, fronting on Nahor Manor Road to-wit: 

 
 All of that certain lot or parcel of land, together with the improvements 
 thereon and the appurtenances thereunto situate in Fluvanna County, 
 Virginia in the Cunningham Magisterial District, containing 94.558 acres 
  of  land fronting on the south side of Secondary Route 636, being as  
 shown on plat of William S. Roudabush, Inc., a professional corporation, 
 dated February 12, 1981 of record in the Clerk’s Office of the Circuit  
 Court of Fluvanna County, Virginia in Plat Book 1 at Page 15. 
 
 And being the same property conveyed to Edward B. Maben and Helen 
 E. Maben, husband and wife, as tenants by the entirety with full rights of 

survivorship as at common law by deed dated July 9, 1981 from Harmon- 
 Michie, Inc. of record in the aforesaid Clerk’s Office in Deed Book 143  
 at Page 841. The said Edward B. Maben died on June 19, 1982 survived  
 by his wife, Helen E. Maben. 
 

19



 The Property is shown as Tax Map No. 17-A-22 among the land records of the County of 
Fluvanna, Virginia. Even if the Property consists of more than one parcel for real estate tax or any other 
purpose, it shall be considered one parcel for purposes of this Easement, and the restrictions and covenants 
of this Easement shall apply to the Property as a whole. 

   
 

SECTION I - PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Easement is to preserve and protect the conservation values of the Property in 
perpetuity by imposing the Restrictions on the use of the Property set forth in Section II and providing for 
their enforcement in Section III. More specifically, Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that the purpose of 
this Easement is to apply the following principal and secondary objectives to the Property: 

 
a. The principal objectives of this Easement are to assure in perpetuity:  

i. that sustainable forest management practices will be observed , operating as a covenant 
that will run with the Property, thus providing continuous supplies of forest products 
and environmental services such as clean air and water and wildlife habitat, and; 

ii. that productive forest resources will be established and maintained on the Property, 
and; 

iii. the long-term, silviculturally-sound management of those resources in a manner that 
minimizes negative impact and the duration of impact on surface water quality, wildlife 
habitat, and the other conservation values of the Property.  

 
b. The secondary objectives of this Easement are to encourage sustainable management of soil and 

water resources and to conserve the watershed, natural habitat, scenic, forestal, scientific, public 
recreation, and general open space conservation values associated with the Property as described in the 
above recitals and documented in the Baseline Documentation Report (the “BDR”) described in Section 
IV below.   

 
Pursuant to the Virginia Land Conservation Foundation’s Conservation Value Review Criteria, the 

purpose of this Easement also expressly includes the preservation of land for forestal use, natural habitat 
and biological diversity,  natural resource-based outdoor recreation or education, watershed preservation, 
preservation of scenic open space, and preservation of open space designated by local government. 

 
Grantor covenants that no acts or uses that are inconsistent with the purpose of this Easement shall 

be conducted on the Property. 
 

SECTION II – RESTRICTIONS 
 

Restrictions are hereby imposed on the use of the Property pursuant to the public policies set forth above. 
The acts that Grantor covenants to do and not to do upon the Property, and the restrictions that Grantee is 
hereby entitled to enforce, are and shall be as follows: 
 
1. DIVISION. Division of the Property is prohibited. The Property shall not be sold or conveyed 

except as a whole. 
 

20



 
 
 
Boundary line adjustments with adjoining parcels of land not covered by this Easement are 
permitted and shall not be considered a division of the Property, provided that Grantee is made 
party to the deed creating the boundary line adjustment, and at least one of the following 
conditions is met: 
 

(i) The entire adjacent parcel is subject to a recorded open-space easement owned by 
Grantee or another political subdivision or agency of the Commonwealth; or 
 

(ii) The proposed boundary line adjustment shall have been reviewed and approved in 
writing in advance by Grantee. 

 
2.   BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES.   No buildings or structures other than the following are 

permitted on the Property:  
 
  (i)  one single-family dwelling.  Such dwelling shall not exceed 3,000 square feet of above-

ground enclosed living area or 40 feet in height without Grantee’s prior review and written 
approval, which approval shall take into consideration the impact of the size, height and sitting of 
the proposed dwelling on the scenic and other conservation values of the Property.   

 
 (ii) non-residential outbuildings and structures commonly and appropriately incidental to 

dwellings permitted in subparagraph (i) and to open-space recreational or park usage and sized 
appropriately to serve as amenities to such usage  provided that the footprint of each such non-
residential outbuilding and structure shall not exceed 2,000 square feet in ground area unless prior 
written approval shall have been obtained from Grantee that a larger footprint is permitted 
considering the purpose of this Easement and the scale of the proposed outbuilding or structure in 
relation to the surrounding area. Such recreational or park usage shall not include any ball field 
(eg. football, baseball, soccer, etc.) or swimming pools, aquatic center, gymnasium, etc. 

 
(iii) farm buildings or structures, except that a farm building or farm structure exceeding 

4,500 square feet in ground area may not be constructed on the Property unless prior written 
approval for the building or structure shall have been obtained from Grantee, which approval shall 
be limited to consideration of the impact of the size, height and siting of the proposed structure on 
the conservation values of the Property.  For purposes of this subparagraph, a farm building or 
structure shall mean a building or structure originally constructed and used for the activities 
specified in Section II Paragraph 3(i) or (ii). 

 
Grantor shall have the right to construct new dwellings, buildings and structures permitted 

in this Section II, Paragraph 2 and to repair, maintain, renovate and replace all new and existing 
permitted dwellings, buildings and structures on the Property, within the limitations set forth in 
this Easement. 

  
(iv) Private roads to serve permitted buildings or structures only (if applicable: private 

roads to parcels created by permitted divisions of the Property), (if applicable: private roads 

21



required to be constructed in conjunction with permitted subdivisions of the Property) and roads 
with permeable surfaces for other permitted uses, such as farming or forestry, may be constructed 
and maintained. 

 
(v)  Parking areas to serve permitted open-space recreational or park usage. 
 
(vi)  Public or private utilities to serve permitted buildings or structures only may be 

constructed and maintained. Public or private utilities that do not serve the Property shall not cross 
the Property unless Grantee determines that the construction and maintenance of such utilities will 
not impair the conservation values of the Property and gives its prior written approval for such 
construction and maintenance, which approval shall take into consideration the visibility and other 
impact of such utilities on the conservation values of the Property. Grantor reserves its separate 
rights to approve such public or private utilities. 

 
Grantor shall give Grantee 30 days’ written notice as provided in Section V, Paragraph 8 

before beginning construction or enlargement of any structure permitted by subparagraphs (i) and 
(iii) on the Property (or, as applicable, before any ground clearing in preparation for such activity).
   

The collective footprint of all buildings and structures on the Property, excluding roads, 
shall not exceed 20,000 square feet, provided that if Grantor can demonstrate that an increase in 
the collective footprint would result in increased protection of the conservation values of the 
Property, Grantee may approve such increase. For the purpose of this Paragraph the collective 
footprint is the ground area measured in square feet of the buildings and structures set forth in 
subparagraphs (i) through (iii) above and all other impervious surfaces, excluding roads and 
parking areas.  

 
 Any building or structure to be constructed, relocated, or reconstructed on the Property 

shall require the prior written approval of Grantee, which approval shall be limited to 
consideration of the impact of the siting and other attributes of the proposed dwelling on the 
conservation values of the Property.  
 

3.   INDUSTRIAL OR COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES. Industrial or commercial activities are 
prohibited with the exception of the following:  

  
 (i) agriculture (including livestock production), equine activities, and forestry;  
 
 (ii) small-scale incidental commercial or industrial operations related to activities set forth 
in (i) above, such as the processing and sale of products produced on the Property, that Grantee 
approves in writing as being consistent with the purpose of this Easement;  
 
 (iii) temporary or seasonal outdoor activities that do not permanently alter the physical 
appearance of the Property and that do not diminish the conservation values of the Property herein 
protected; and  
 
 (iv) activities that can be and in fact are conducted within permitted buildings without 
material alteration to their external appearance.  

22



 
Temporary outdoor activities involving 100 or more people shall not exceed 7 consecutive days in 
any 90-day period without prior written approval of Grantee.  
 

  Notwithstanding any other provision of this easement, no commercial recreational use except for 
de minimis commercial recreational uses shall be allowed on the Property.) 

 
4. PRESERVATION OF FOREST ACREAGE. The forested portion of the Property shall not be 

converted to other uses except in the following cases: (a) for open-space recreational and park 
usage,  (b) to accommodate buildings and structures permitted under Paragraph 2 above, (c) for 
agricultural or equine uses as provided for in Paragraph 3(i) above, or (d) for providing or 
improving wildlife habitat.  

 
  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no more than a total of fifteen (15) acres of forest shall be 

converted to another use except in accordance with a written forest conversion plan that is 
approved in advance, in writing, by Grantee. Such forest conversion plan shall be submitted to the 
Grantee for approval sixty (60) days before beginning the conversion of any forest in excess of 
three (3) acres as set forth above and shall provide, at a minimum, a description and map of the 
area to be converted, a description of the land use to be established, and a description of the Best 
Management Practices to be implemented in connection with the conversion.  

 
  (i) In any event, at least seventy-five (75) percent of the forested area of the property as of 

the date of this Easement (the “Existing Forest”) as designated in BDR, shall remain in forest 
cover in perpetuity.  

 
  (ii) No forest within the riparian buffers described in Paragraph 6 below shall be converted, 

provided that if Grantor can demonstrate that converting forests within the riparian buffers would 
result in increased protection of the conservation values of the Property, Grantee may approve 
such conversion. 

 
5.   FOREST MANAGEMENT. 
 

(i)  Forest Stewardship Plan. All forest activities conducted on the Property shall be in 
accordance with an approved Forest Stewardship or multiple resource forest management plan (the 
“Plan”).  

 
 (a) The Plan shall be first prepared or updated within one year of the date of this 

Easement. 
 
 (b) The Plan shall only be prepared or updated by a forester meeting the 

qualifications specified in Section 10.1-1181.9 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.  
 
 (c) The Plan and any updates must be approved in writing by Grantee, which 

approval shall be limited to consideration of whether (1) the Plan accurately and adequately 
describes the forest conditions of the Property and (2) the recommendations in the Plan comply 
with sound silvicultural practices and are consistent with the purpose of this Easement.  

23



 
 (d) The Plan may be updated at any time, and shall be updated within six (6) 

months after either (1) a significant change in forest conditions as determined by Grantee or (2) 
the transfer of all or any part of the Property to a new owner. 

 
 (e) The Plan must have been prepared or last updated no more than ten years before 

the submission of any pre-harvest plan as required in subparagraph (ii). 
 

(ii)  Harvesting. A pre-harvest plan consistent with the Plan shall be submitted to Grantee 
for approval no later than 30 days before beginning any material forest management activity or 
harvest.  

 
(a) The pre-harvest plan shall include at least the following: description of the type 

of harvest to be conducted and the class(es) of trees to be removed; identification and description 
of the best management practices to be implemented, in sufficient detail to ensure that water and 
soil quality will be protected; and a description of the planned method of forest regeneration that is 
consistent with the purpose of this Easement. Grantor shall also notify Grantee no later than seven 
(7) days after the completion of any such activity or harvest. 

 
  (b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Easement, the following activities 
shall be permitted without a pre-harvest plan or further permission from Grantee: non-commercial, 
de minimis harvest of trees for trail clearing, firewood, or Grantor’s domestic use, or removal of 
individual dead, diseased, or dying trees; removal of trees that pose an imminent hazard to human 
health or safety; and removal of invasive species.  
 
 (iii) Water Quality. Best Management Practices, as defined by the Virginia Department of 
Forestry (“BMP Guidelines”), shall be used to control erosion and protect water quality when any 
forestry activity is undertaken.  
 

  (iv)  Forest Protection. The Plan shall include reasonable recommendations to prevent 
wildfires. The Plan shall likewise address and recommend appropriate measures to prevent or treat 
damage to the forest caused by disease and insects.  

 
  (v)  Invasive Species.  No plant species that is listed as a “Highly Invasive Alien Plant 

Species” by the Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation, Division of Natural 
Heritage (or as a highly invasive alien plant species on any successor list promulgated by the 
Commonwealth of Virginia) shall be purposely introduced onto the Property. The Plan shall 
include reasonable recommendations for removing or preventing the establishment of such 
invasive species.  

 
  (vi) Woodland Grazing. The grazing of livestock in the forest shall be prohibited except in 

areas where Grantee determines that tree growth, water quality, wildlife habitat, and other 
conservation values are not likely to be damaged by such grazing. Such allowed woodland grazing 
areas, if any, are designated in the BDR and such areas may be revised and updated in subsequent 
addenda to the BDR as described in Section IV. 

 

24



6. RIPARIAN BUFFER. To protect water quality, riparian buffer strips (“riparian buffers”) shall be 
maintained as follows:  

 
  (i) Within the forested portion of the Property, streamside management zones (“SMZs”) 

shall be maintained as described in the BMP Guidelines.  The width of the SMZs shall be a 
minimum of 50 feet, or as defined in the BMP Guidelines, whichever is greater.  
 
Riparian buffer widths shall be measured on a horizontal plane from the top of the bank [or, if 
applicable, from the high water mark in tidal waters]. 
 
The following activities are prohibited within the riparian buffers: 
 
  (i) Grazing of livestock. 
 
  (ii) Storage of compost, manure, fertilizers, chemicals, machinery or equipment. 
 
  (iii) Removal of trees except (a) as part of a timber harvest in accordance with the 
aforementioned Plan, (b) removal of invasive species, (c) removal of dead, diseased or dying trees, 
and (4) removal of trees posing a human health or safety hazard. 
 
  (iv) Plowing, cultivation, road-building, grading or other earth-disturbing activity, 
except as may be reasonably necessary for (a) wetland or stream bank restoration, or erosion 
control, pursuant to a government permit, (b) establishing or maintaining fencing along or within 
the buffer area, (c) construction and maintenance of approved stream crossings, (d) creation and 
maintenance of foot or horse trails with unimproved surfaces, and (e) dam construction to create 
ponds. 
 
  (v) Building construction. 
 
The following activities are permitted within the riparian buffers: 
 
  (i) Planting of native trees, shrubs, or other vegetation. 
 
  (ii) Vegetative pruning to improve health and form of existing trees, maintain horse 
and hiking trails, or improve sightlines from permitted structures. 

 
Should any of the watercourses meander or change course naturally, the riparian buffers 

shall remain the same width, but move relative to the movement of the watercourse. In such event, 
any buildings or structures that were outside of the original buffer strip and are determined to be 
within the new buffer strip shall not be considered in violation of these restrictions and may be 
maintained at such locations. 

 
7. BIOCIDES. Biocides may be used in the course of forest management in accordance with the 

Plan, to control invasive species, as a part of agricultural operations, around improvements on the 
Property, or as needed for general maintenance or pest control.  Biocides shall not be applied in 
any manner that is inconsistent with the purpose of this Easement, or that will negatively affect the 

25



conservation values of the Property.  If used, all biocides shall be applied in accordance with all 
labeling and appropriate safety measures. 

 
8.   GRADING, BLASTING, MINING. Grading, blasting or earth removal shall not materially alter 

the topography of the Property except for (i) dam construction to create ponds, (ii) wetlands or 
stream bank restoration pursuant to a government permit, (iii) erosion and sediment control 
pursuant to a government-required erosion and sediment control plan, or (iv) as required in the 
construction of permitted buildings, structures, roads, and utilities. Best Management Practices, in 
accordance with the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, shall be used to control erosion 
and protect water quality during such construction. Grading, blasting or earth removal in excess of 
one-half acre for the purposes set forth in subparagraphs (i) through (iv) above require 30 days’  
prior notice to Grantee. Generally accepted agricultural activities shall not constitute a material 
alteration. Surface mining, subsurface mining, dredging on or from the Property, or drilling for oil 
or gas on the Property is prohibited. 

   
9. ACCUMULATION OF TRASH. Accumulation or dumping of trash, refuse, junk or toxic 

materials is not permitted on the Property. This restriction shall not prevent generally accepted 
agricultural or wildlife management practices, such as creation of brush piles, composting, or the 
storage of farm machinery, organic matter, agricultural products or agricultural byproducts on the 
Property, as long as such practices are conducted in accordance with applicable government laws 
and regulations.  

 
10. SIGNS. Display of billboards, signs, or other advertisements is not permitted on or over the 

Property except to: (i) state the name and/or address of the owners of the Property, (ii) advertise 
the sale or lease of the Property, (iii) advertise the sale of goods or services produced incidentally 
to a permitted use of the Property, (iv) provide notice necessary for the protection of the Property, 
(v) give directions to visitors, or (vi) recognize historic status or participation in a conservation 
program. Temporary political signs are allowed. No single sign, visible from outside the Property, 
shall exceed 20 square feet in size without prior Grantee approval. Total signage, visible from 
outside the Property, shall not exceed 64 square feet. 

 
 

SECTION III – ENFORCEMENT 
 
1.     RIGHT OF INSPECTION. Representatives of Grantee may enter the Property from time to time 

for purposes of inspection (including photographic documentation of the condition of the 
Property) and enforcement of the terms of this Easement after permission from or reasonable 
notice to Grantor or Grantor’s representative, provided, however, that in the event of an 
emergency, entrance may be made to prevent, terminate or mitigate a potential violation of these 
restrictions with notice to Grantor or Grantor’s representative being given at the earliest 
practicable time.   

  
2. ENFORCEMENT. Grantee has the right to bring an action at law or in equity to enforce the 

Restrictions contained herein.  This right specifically includes the right (i) to require restoration of 
the Property to its condition at the time of the donation or, in Grantee’s discretion, to require 
restoration of the Property to its condition prior to the violation, provided that such prior condition 
was in compliance with the Restrictions and consistent with the purpose of this Easement; (ii) to 

26



 
  
 

SECTION IV – DOCUMENTATION 
 
1.   BASELINE REPORT. Documentation retained in the office of Grantee including, but not 

limited to the BDR describes the condition and character of the Property at the time of the gift. 
The BDR may be used to determine compliance with and enforcement of the terms of this 
Easement; however, the parties are not precluded from using other relevant evidence or 
information to assist in that determination. Grantor has made available to Grantee, prior to 
donating this Easement, documentation sufficient to establish the condition of the Property at the 
time of the gift. The parties hereby acknowledge that the BDR contained in the files of Grantee at 
the time of the gift, an original of which having been provided to Grantor by Grantee, is an 
accurate representation of the Property at the time of the gift.  

  
2.   MONITORING; ADDENDA TO BASELINE REPORT. The parties herewith understand and 

acknowledge that the Grantee will monitor the Property for compliance with this Easement on an 
annual basis, and Grantee will create addenda to the BDR from time to time to document changes 
to the Property. Grantee will forward copies of such addenda to Grantor for Grantor’s records. 

 
 

SECTION V – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. DURATION. This Easement shall be perpetual. It is an easement in gross that runs with the land 
as an incorporeal interest in the Property. The covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions 
contained in this Easement are binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and 
their successors and assigns, and shall continue as a servitude running in perpetuity with the 
Property. The rights and obligations of an owner of the Property under this Easement terminate 
upon proper transfer of such owner’s interest in the Property, except that liability for acts or 
omissions occurring prior to transfer shall survive transfer. 

 
2. NO PUBLIC ACCESS. Although this Easement will benefit the public as described above, 

nothing herein shall be construed to convey to the public a right of access to, or use of the 
Property. Grantor retains the exclusive right to such access and use, subject to the terms hereof. 

27



 
3.   TITLE. Grantor covenants and warrants that Grantor has good title to the Property, that Grantor 

has all right and authority to grant and convey this Easement and that the Property is free and clear 
of all encumbrances (other than restrictions, covenants, conditions, and utility and access 
easements of record) including, but not limited to, any deeds of trust or mortgages not subordinated 
to this Easement. 

 
4.  ACCEPTANCE. Acceptance of this conveyance by Grantee is authorized by Virginia Code 

Sections 10.1-1700 through 10.1-1705 and is evidenced by the signature of the State Forester. 
 
5.   INTERACTION WITH OTHER LAWS. This Easement does not permit any use of the 

Property that is otherwise prohibited by federal, state, or local law or regulation.  Neither the 
Property, nor any portion of it, has been or shall be dedicated as open space within, or as part of, a 
residential subdivision or any other type of residential or commercial development; dedicated as 
open space in, or as part of, any real estate development plan; or dedicated for the purpose of 
fulfilling density requirements to obtain approvals for zoning, subdivision, site plan, or building 
permits. No development rights that have been encumbered or extinguished by this Easement shall 
be transferred to any other property pursuant to a transferable development rights scheme, cluster 
development arrangement or otherwise. 

 
6. CONSTRUCTION. Any general rule of construction to the contrary notwithstanding, this 

Easement shall be liberally construed in favor of the grant to effect the purposes of the Easement 
and the policy and purposes of Grantee. If any provision of this Easement is found to be 
ambiguous, an interpretation consistent with the purpose of this Easement that would render the 
provision valid shall be favored over any interpretation that would render it invalid. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, lawful acts or uses consistent with the purpose of and not 
expressly prohibited by this Easement are permitted on the Property. Grantor and Grantee intend 
that the grant of this Easement qualifies as a “qualified conservation contribution” as that term is 
defined in Section 170(h)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and Treasury Regulations §1.170A-14, 
and the restrictions and other provisions of this instrument shall be construed and applied in a 
manner that will not prevent this Easement from being a qualified conservation contribution.  

 
7.  REFERENCE TO EASEMENT IN SUBSEQUENT DEEDS. This Easement shall be 

referenced by deed book and page number, instrument number or other appropriate reference in 
any deed or other instrument conveying any interest in the Property. 

 
8.  NOTICE TO GRANTEE. For the purpose of giving notices hereunder the current address of 

Grantor is 102 Woodrow Road, Winchester, VA  22602, and the current address of Grantee is  
P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963. 

 
 Grantor agrees to notify Grantee in writing (i) before exercising any reserved right that Grantor 

believes may have an adverse effect on the conservation or open-space values or interests 
associated with the Property (the purpose of requiring such notice is to afford Grantee an adequate 
opportunity to monitor such activities to ensure that they are carried out in a manner consistent 
with the purpose of this Easement; such notice shall describe the proposed activity in sufficient 
detail to allow Grantee to judge the consistency of the proposed activity with the purpose of this 

28



Easement); and (ii) at or prior to closing on any inter vivos transfer, other than a deed of trust or 
mortgage, of all or any part of the Property. 

 
9. TAX MATTERS. The parties hereto agree and understand that any value of this Easement 

claimed for tax purposes as a charitable gift must be fully and accurately substantiated by an 
appraisal from a qualified appraiser as defined in IRS regulations (see Section 1.170A-13(c)(5)), 
and that the appraisal is subject to review and audit by all appropriate tax authorities. Grantee 
makes no express or implied warranties that any tax benefits will be available to Grantor from 
donation of this Easement, or that any such tax benefits might be transferable, or that there will be 
any market for any tax benefits that might be transferable. By its execution hereof, Grantee 
acknowledges and confirms receipt of the Easement and further acknowledges that Grantee has 
not provided any goods or services to Grantor in consideration of the grant of the Easement. 

 
10.   MERGER. Grantor and Grantee agree that in the event that Grantee acquires a fee interest in the 

Property, this Easement shall not merge into the fee interest, but shall survive the deed and 
continue to encumber the Property.  

 
11.  ASSIGNMENT BY GRANTEE. Grantee may not transfer or convey this Easement unless 

Grantee conditions such transfer or conveyance on the requirement that (1) all restrictions and 
conservation purposes set forth in this Easement are to be continued in perpetuity and (2) the 
transferee then qualifies as an eligible donee as defined in Section 170(h)(3) of the IRC as 
amended and the applicable Treasury Regulations.  

 
12.  GRANTEE’S PROPERTY RIGHT. Grantor agrees that the donation of this Easement gives rise 

to a property right, immediately vested in Grantee, with a fair market value that is at least equal to 
the proportionate value that the perpetual conservation restriction at the time of the gift bears to 
the value of the Property as a whole at that time. 

 
13.      CONVERSION OR DIVERSION.  Grantor and Grantee intend that this Easement be perpetual 

and acknowledge that no part of the Property may be converted or diverted from its open-space 
use except in compliance with the provisions of Section 10.1-1704 of the Open-Space Land Act 
which does not permit loss of open space.  

 
14.   EXTINGUISHMENT. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 10.1-1704 of the Open-Space 

Land Act, should an attempt be made to extinguish this Easement, such extinguishment can be 
carried out only by judicial proceedings and only if in compliance with Section 10.1-1704 and 
IRC Section 170(h) and applicable Treasury Regulations. In any sale or exchange of the Property 
subsequent to an extinguishment, Grantee shall be entitled to a portion of the proceeds at least 
equal to the proportionate value of this Easement computed as set forth in Paragraph 12 above, but 
not to be less than the proportion that the value of this Easement at the time of extinguishment 
bears to the then value of the Property as a whole.  Grantee shall use all its share of the proceeds 
from the sale of the Property in a manner consistent with the conservation purpose of this 
Easement and the Open-Space Land Act. 

 
15.      AMENDMENT. Grantee and Grantor may amend this Easement to enhance the Property’s 

conservation values or add to the restricted property, provided that no amendment shall (i) affect 

29



this Easement’s perpetual duration, (ii) conflict with or be contrary to or inconsistent with the 
conservation purpose of this Easement, (iii) reduce the protection of the conservation values, (iv) 
affect the qualification of this Easement as a “qualified conservation contribution” or “interest in 
land” or (v) affect the status of Grantee as a “qualified organization” or “eligible donee”. No 
amendment shall be effective unless documented in a notarized writing executed by Grantee and 
Grantor and recorded among the land records of the County of Fluvanna, Virginia. 

 
16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Easement or its application to any person or 

circumstance is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining 
provisions of this Easement shall not be affected thereby. 

 
17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument sets forth the entire agreement of the parties with 

respect to this Easement and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, understandings, or 
agreements relating to the easement. 

 
18. CONTROLLING LAW. The interpretation and performance of this Easement shall be governed 

by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, resolving any ambiguities or questions of the 
validity of specific provisions in order to give maximum effect to its conservation purpose. 

 
19. RECORDING. This Easement shall be recorded in the land records in the Circuit Court Clerk’s 

Office of the County of Fluvanna, Virginia, and Grantee may re-record it any time as may be 
required to preserve its rights under this Easement. 

 
20. COUNTERPARTS. This Easement may be executed in one or more counterpart copies, each of 

which, when executed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same Easement. Execution of this Easement at different times and in different places by the 
parties hereto shall not affect the validity of the Easement. 
 
WITNESS the following signatures and seals: 

 
[Counterpart signature pages follow] 

 
 

30



[Counterpart signature page 1 of 2] 
 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
Helen E. Maben, Grantor   
 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
CITY/COUNTY OF ______________________, TO WIT: 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2011, by  
Helen E. Maben, Grantor.  

 
 ____________________________________ 
   Notary Public 

My commission expires: _______________________ (SEAL) 
 
Registration No.: _____________________________ 

31



  18

  
[Counterpart signature page 2 of 2] 

 

By acceptance hereof, Grantee hereby designates the Property as open-space land pursuant to Virginia 
Code § 10.1-1701. 

 
      COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  
 
      By: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
CITY/COUNTY OF _____________________________, TO WIT: 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of  
______________, 2011, by _____________________________________, _________________ of the 
County of Fluvanna, Virginia. 
 

__________________________________________ 
  Notary Public 

 
My commission expires: ________________________ (SEAL) 

Registration No.: ______________________________ 
 
       

Approved as to form: 
 
      _____________________________________ 
    l 

32



33

Attachment E



34



35



36



















2



3





2



3



4





2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10





2



3





2



3





2





2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



Closed Meeting 

Items contained in this 

section are 

EXEMPT 

from the 

Freedom of Information Act 

 








	Agenda 12-07-2011
	Minutes Nov 2, 2011
	Minutes Nov 16, 2011
	Resolution for Eagle Scout
	FY12 Budget Supplement for Fork Union Sanitary DIstrict Insurance
	FY12 Budget Supplement for Sheriff's Separtment Insurance Claim
	FY12 Budget Supplement for Review of Telecommunication Tower Apps.
	Budget Transfer for County Attorney Services
	Adoption of Road Name
	Accounts Payable
	Exchange of property with LMOA
	Tyler Munis Financial Software Update
	EST 11:02 - Palmyra Associates
	EST 11:03 - Maben
	Hiring of Contract staff for rescue coverage
	Budget Appropriation for Carry-Over of FY11 School''s Local Appropriation
	Reimbursement of SPCA Maintenance
	BCC Appt to BZA 1
	BCC Appt to BZA 2
	BCC Appt to EDA
	BCC Appt to FUSDAC
	BCC Appt to JABA
	BCC Appt to TJEMSC
	BCC Appt to TJPDC
	Closed Meeting
	Project Status Report - Dec
	Contingency



